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PROCESRSDINGES

(Xsaring reconvened at 2:30 p.m.)

CHAIRMAN JORESOM: We're going to reconvene
our hearing. I understand that GTE's witness is
prepared to begin testifying.

Now, were all of the witnesses that are
going to testify in the technical portion of the
hearing present this morning and were they all sworn
in? No. oOkay. If we could, at this time if you're
going to testify, stand and raise your right hand.

(Witnesses collectively sworn.)

CEAIRMAY JOEMSON: Thank you. You may be
seated, Counsel, are there any other preliminary
matters?

M8. BROWM: There are a couple of
preliminary matters, Madam Chairman, from this
morning, and involving just the technical hearing.
One is the Senator Latvala's testimony.

MR. 8BCK: Chairman Johnson, I've spoken
wvith counsel for all sides and everybody agreed to
allowed Senator Latvala's testimony to be moved into
the record as though read, along with his exhibit, and
they agreed it could be placed in the record without
him present and testifying.

CEAIRMAN JOENMSOM: Okay, Mr. Beck. 1B it

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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appropriate to do that at this point in time or do we
walt until it comes up in the natural course of
testimony?

NS. BROWN: We can do it either way.

CHEAIRMANM JOHMBON: We can go ahead and do it

MR. DPECK: It's so moved.

MS. BROWNM: We will need to mark his
exhibit.

CEAIRMAM JOHNSON: Show Sena.)r latvala's
written testimony inserted into the record as though
read, and the exhibits -- we have some documents that
we've asked to be put on the correspondence side of

the record, but this will be the exhibit. Short

titlet

MR. BECK: "Statement of Senator Latvala."®
CEAIRMAN JOHMBOM: We'll name that

"gtatement of Senator Latvala” and mark it Exhibit 1.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF
SENATOR JACK LATVALA

BEFORE THE
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 980048-TI

Please state you name and position.

My name is Jack Latvala, and | represent District 19 in the Flornida Senate

Do you receive telephone service from GTE Florida?
| have been a GTE customer almost all of my Ife | grew up in Poilk County
with GTE and the 813 area code | currently reside «n Palm Harbor and

continue o receive telephone service from GTE

What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testmony 1s to address the proposal by GTE to
implement an overlay area code plan for the 813 area code | conclude that
the interests of the citizens residing within the 813 area code will be better
served by implementing a geographic split to provide additional numbers in

the area.
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Do you have any observations about the Tampa Bay area?
The Tampa Bay area as a whole, and particularly Pinelias and Pasco
Counties, has one of the hiohest concenirations of retreas and elderly

citizens in Fiorida.

Pinellas County and West Pasco County aiso do not have the growih rates
of many areas of Florida. According to the Pinellas Planning Department,
Pinetlas County is approximately 91% built-out There is virtually no room
left to construct new housing Projected growth in Pinellas’ population over
the next 10 years is only 8%  In this respect 1! 1s very similar to the
situation the Commission confronted in Monroe County where there was
little room for growth. With relalively slower growth n housing and
popuietion than in other areas of Fiorida. there may be slower growth in
telephone numbers and iess of a need for additicnal telephone numbers in

the future.

What are your concerns with the overlay area code proposal of GTE?
An overlay area code pian will require the ctizens of Tampa Bay to dial ten
digits for all locl calls, whether calling nex! door or across town Mandatory
ten digit dialing, elong with the existence of two area codes serving the same

geographic area, will be very confusing and inconvervent for everyone

People in the same neighborhood could have differen! area codes In fact,

a person with two lines in thewr house could wind up haviny one line with the

b ]

-
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813 area code and the second Iine wilh the new area code This same
problem would confront businesses. where some lines could be in one area
code and other lines in another area code. resulting in confusion to their

customers.

Unless absolutely necessary. the Commisston should be hesitant to impose
unnecessary inconveruence and confusion on consumers The high

concentration of retirees and elderly in the area makes this even more

important.

Are you aware of any other problems with the overlay area code plan?
Yes. When | attended the public workshop +n Tampa a number of persons
representing alarm monitoring compames teshified about the hardship they
and their customers would endure with an overlay area code plan. |
understand that in some cases, with mandatory ten digil local draling, they
would have to reprogram equipment focated on the customer’s premisg  In
other cases, with equipment installed many ycars ago they wouid not be
able to reprogram the equipment 1o make the ten dig ! local calls  in those
cases new equipment would have to be inslalled that could cost customers

several hundred dollars.

Do you believe the overlay plan is appropriate for the B13 area code?
An overlay area code should only be use as a last resort when their 15 no
practical means of implementing a geographic spit  This occuried in Miami,

3
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where there was no sersible geographic spht available In the Tampa Bay

area, however, there are a number of very practical ways to divide the area

geographicatly

There are alsc significant demographic differences between the Tampa Bay
area and the metropolitan Miami area | belleve we have a greater
proportion of retirees and elderly in the Tampa Bay area than in the
metropalitan Miami area  The impact of mandatory ten digit dialing would be

particularly difficult on this segment of our population

Have you prepared a statement concerning the 813 area code?
Yes. | have attached a position stalement 10 this testimony as exhibit A |

would like to personally deliver this statement at the hearing scheduled for

Feabruary 24, 1998

What is your recommendation to the Commission?
| recommend that the Commussion implement a8 geographic sphit to provide

numbering relief for the B13 area code

Does that conclude your testimony?

Yes.
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NS. DROWNM: Chairman Johnson, we also have a
official recognition list that we would like to have
marked as a composite exhibit to be introduced into
the record, which we can do now or later as you
choose. All of the parties have a copy of it. It
includes 14 orders, seven FPSC orders and seven FCC
orders, and I won't read them all.

CEAIRNAN JONNSON: Okay. Ms. Brown, you'd
like to have this marked as an exhibit?

N8. BROWN: Yes.

CEAIRMAN JOHNSBON: We'll mark the Official

Recognition List as Exhibit 2.

MS. BROWNM: And I think that's all -- excuse

CHAIRMAN JOHMSON: And we'll take official
recognition of the orders that are stated on
Exhibit 2.

MS. BROWN: Thank you.

(Exhibits 1 and 2 marked for
identification.)

CHAIRMAN JOHMSOM: Any other preliminary
matters?

MS. RULN: AT4LT has one preliminary matter,

It's regarding Issue 2, the dialing pattern,

and although Mr. Smith will not be testifying about a

PFLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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dialing pattern, 1'd like to clarify AT&T's position
as shown in the Prshearing statement.

%When I read it over it confused me, s8c I
thought perhaps I should clarify it for you because
you will not be having any testimony on our position.
And I think the easiest way to clarify it right now is
that AT&T will agree with MCI on the dialing pattern.

CHEAIRMAN JOMNMSOM: Okay. Then we'll note
that for the record.

MB. RULB: Thank you.

CEAIRMAN JONMBOM: Are there any other

preliminary matters?

H8. BROWM: I don't think so, Chairman

Johnson.

CHAIRMAN JOENNBON: Seeing none. GTE.

DEVERRLY Y. MENARD
was called as a witness on behalf of GTE Florida
Incorporated and, having been duly sworh, testified as
follows:

DIRECT EXANINATION
BY NS. CASWELL:

Q Ms. Menard, can you state your name and

business addr ss for the record, please?

A My name is Beverly Y. Menard. My business

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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address is One Tampa City Center, Tampa, Florida
331601-0110.

Q By whom are you employed and in what
capacity?

A I's employed by GTE Service Corporation as
Regional Director, Regulatory and Industry Affalrs.

Q Did you file direct testimony in this
Ilprocoodinq?

Y Yes, I did.

Q pid that direct testimony have a attached to
it one exhibit labeled BYM-1 which is five pages long?

Yes, it did.

o Do you have any changes to your direct

|| testimony or the exhibit?

A No, I do not.
Q So if I ask you those gquestions today your
answers would remain the same?
A Yes.
NS. CASWBLL: Chairman Johnson, I would ask
that Ms. Menard’'s direct testimony be inserted into

the record as though read.

CEAIRMAM JOENSON: It will be so inserted.

MS. CASWELL: Thank you.

FPLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




o o°© <N O ;A W ON

-
o

1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

182

GTE FLORIDA INCORPORATED
TESTIMONY OF BEVERLY Y. MENARD

DOCKET NO. 980048-TL

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME. BUSINESS ADDRESS AND
POSITION WITH GTE.

My name s Beverly Y. Menard, My business address is One
Tampa City Center, Tampa, Florida 33601-0110. My current
position is Regional Director - Regulatary and Industry Affairs and

! am employed by GTE Service Corparation.

WILL YOU BRIEFLY STATE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND
AND BUSINESS EXPERIENCE?

| joined GTE Florida (GTEFL) in February 1969. | was employed
in the Business Relations Department from 1969 to 1978, holding
various positions of increasing responsitwlity, primarily in the area
of cost separations studies. | graduated from the University of
Soutn Florida in June of 1973 receiving a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Business Administration withh  an  Accounting Major.
Subsequently, | received a Masier of Accountancy Degree in
December of 1977 from the University of South Florida. In March
of 1978, | became Settlements Plannmg Adnmuaistrator with GTE
Service Corporation. In January of 1981, { was named
Manager-Division of Revenues with GTE Service Corporation,

where | was responsible 1or the adnutustraton of the GTE division
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of revenues procedures and the negotiation of settlement matters
with AT&T. In November aof 1981, | became Business Relations
Director with GTEFL. In that capacity, | was responsible for the
preparation of separations studies and connecting company
matters. Effective February 1987, | became Revenue Planning
Director. In this capacity, | was responsible for revenue, capital
recovery and regulatory 1ssues. On October 1, 1988, | became
Area Director - Regulatory and Industry Affairs. In that capacity,
| was responsible tar regulatory fhihngs, positions and industry
affairs in eight southern states plus Fionda. In August 1991, i
became Regional Director Regulatory and Industry Affairs for
Florida. | am responsible for regulatory tilings, positions and

industry affairs issues in Flonda.

HAVE YOU EVER TESTIFIED BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC

SERVICE COMMISSION?

Yes. | have testified before this Commission on numerous

occasions,

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY [N THIS
DOCKET?

The purpose of my testimony 15 to present GTEFL's position on
the appropriate reliet for the 813 area code. In addition, t will

address the dialing patterns that should be utilized in the B13 area

code.
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SHOULD THE COMMISSION APPROVE THE OVERLAY PLAN FOR
THE 813 AREA CODE RELIEF?

Yes. As discussed in the testimony of Mr. GancarZ, this was the
reliaf that was unanimously approved by the current code holders

in the 813 area code.

WHY DOES GTE SUPPORT THE OVERLAY PLAN?

GTE belleves that the overlay 15 the least disruptive and most
long-term solution for this area. | believe that the B13 area code
aiready covers the smallest geographic area in Florida. In
addition, GTE and most of its customers consider this area as one
maetropolitan area. The vast majorty of the calls within the 813

area code are dialed on a seven digit basis,

WHY ARE §0 MANY CALLS DIALED ON A SEVEN DIGIT BASIS?
The Tampa to St. Petersburg/Ciearwater areas wore the first areas
of the state converted to Extended Calling Serwcé {ECS). In this
case, the traffic patterns met the Commission’s EAS community
of interast rule requirements tor agyregate colhng per main station
but did not meet the required distriibunion of calling across all
subscribars to warrant flat rate EAS service  In addition, we had
numMerous customer requests to hind a saluhon whiach would allow
all Tampa/St. Petersburg/Clearwater customers who flew into the
Tampe airport to be able to make a call home by dialing on a

sevean-. Jit basis and tor the price of a local coin call.
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Because the calling levels were significant, though not satisfying
the EAS rule, it was apparent to GTE, as well as the Commission
at that time, that a seven digit, local caling plan should be
introduced for this area. The first ECS routes were implemented
in March 1992. As a result of the Commission’s decision to
implement ECS and 1o not allow toll competition on the ECS
routas, the Commission Oider was appealed two the Flornda
Supreme Court, The Flonda Supreme Court upheld the

Commisgion’s decision 1o deny 1oll competition on these routes.

ARE THERE ADINTIONAL REASONS WHY GTE SUPPORTS THE

OVERLAY PLAN?

Due to tha concentrated area in the 813 area code, and the local
calling areas in place, GTE does not believe there is any
geographic split which will not cause confusion on the appropriate
dialing patterns. One hatt of the customers will be required (o
make a8 number change and cellular phanes will have to be

raprogrammaed in the event aof a geographic split.

In addition, if a geographic split 1s imptemented at this tima, there
is no geography left for any logical, turther subdivision of this
ares. Therefore, GTE believas thatl an ovorlay will be mevitable

along with ten-digit dialing.
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WHAT SHOULD THE DIALING PATTERN BE FOR LOCAL CALLS?
if the averiay is implemented, all local calls would be dialed on a
ten-digit basis. If a geographic split is implemented, some local

caills should be dialed on a ten-digit basis.

WHY SHOULD ANY LOCAL CALLS BE DIALED ON A TEN DIGIT
BASIS WHEN YOU IMPLEMENT A GEOGRAPHIC SPLIT?

Due to the local/EAS/ECS calling areas and concentratad area in
the 813 area code, there s no dividing line which will not split
some local calling area. Exhibit No. BYM-1 shows the proposed
dialing pattarns for the overlay and the vanious geographic split

options presented in Mr. Gancarz's testimony,

WHAT ARE THE INDUSTRY GUIDELINES ON LOCAL CALLING
BETWEEN DIFFERENT AREA CODES?

The industry guidelines state that inter-NPA calls should be done
on & ten-digit basis to insure against code onflicts and inefficient
usage of NXXs. Of course, with an overlay, these code conflicts

are not present.

WHAT SHOULD THE DIALING PATTERN BE FOR TOLL CALLS?
GTE completed the conversion for intraLATA equal access in
February 1997. The dialing pattern for the toli routes shown in

Exhibit Nu. BYM-1 will continue 10 be 1 + 10 digits regardless of

in
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the relief plan which is impiemented. Customars are aiso able 1o

dial calls on these routes o i 1T0XXX basis,

WHAT SHOULD THE DIALING PATTERN BE FOR EAS CALLS?

If the overlay is implemented, all EAS calls would be dialed on a
ten-digit basis. If a geographic split is implemanted, some EAS
calls should be dialed on a ten-digit basis as shown in Exhibit No.

BYM-1.

WHAT SHOULD THE DIALING PATTERN BE FOR ECS CALLS?

If the overlay is impiemented, all ECS calls would be dialed on a
ten-digit basis. If a geographic spht is implemented, some ECS
calls should be dialed on a ten-digit basis and some could remain

on a saeven-digit basis as shown in Exhibit No. BYM-1.

HAS THE COMMISSION MADE A DECISION ON THE LONG-TERM
DIALING PATTERNS IN FLORIDA WHICE DETERMINES THE
DIALING PATTERANS FOR ECS CALLS?

No. The Commission did imtiate an mvestgation on dialing
patterns in Docket No. 960090-TP. The Commussion issued an
Order on April 25, 1996 which aftected a numher ot BellSouth

routes.
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WHAT WAS THE COMMISSION'S RECOMMENDATION FOR THE
DIALING PATTERN FOR ECS CALLS IN THE LONG TERM?
The recommendation was to dial all ECS calls on a 1+ 10 digit

basis.

DO YOU SUPPPORT THIS RECOMMENDATION FOR THE ECS
ROUTES WITHIN THE 813 AREA CODE?

No. The decision in the BellSouth case was prior 10 the
introduction of intraLATA presubscription. In addition, the
BeliSouth ECS routes in that docket were all routes where toll

competition was allowed.

WHAT OTHER CONCERNS DO YOU HAVE WITH THE
RECOMMENDATION FOR 1 + 10 DIGIT DIALING FOR ECS CALLS?
With the implementation of intraLATA presubscription, when a
customer dials the digit “1", the call s transported by the
customer’s chosen carrier. In the BellSouth case, if a customer
wants ECS on an intraLATA route with toll compaetition, the
customer must choose its serving LEC as his presubscribed
carriei. A customer can not presubscribe to a carrier othei than

his sarving LEC in order to get ECS.

On local-only ECS routes, we would be disturbing the basic
pramises of intralLATA presubscription 1t we v. :re to implement

1 + 10 digit dialing on these routes with sll ECS calls being routed
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to GTE instead of the presubscribed carrier. It would also create
customer confusion as to why GTE was handling these calls
instead of their presubscribed carrier.  In addition, GTE's billing
system will not recognize a t+ call as local ECS. Since
intraLATA presubscription had nat boen implemented ot the time
of tha BeliSouth Ordur nndd no discunmion wus hald rolstive to locul
ECS routes, GTE does not heheve this aros was addressed in the

prior docket.

WOULD YOU PLEASE SUMMARIZE WHY GTE SUPPORTS THE
OVERLAY PLAN?

Yan, Tha ovatlay plan oo tho test anmthid 1o prsvide anibaimily
AN aoemintetaity oot e enntiopolitees wiegs 1 nvoida e
tortusion of having diffetent dwling potiodw W The sanm yps of
call in an area whate people live and  work hetwaeety the

communities.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.

1§y
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e (By Ms. Caswell) Could you please give us
a brief summary of your testimony.

A The purpose of my testimony is to address
GTE's position on the appropriate relief for the 813
area code and discuss the dialing patterns that should
be used in the 813 area code.

GTE supports the unanimous decision of the
codeholders to implement an overlay area code of 727
for the 813 area code. Three options for a geographic
split were examined. Due to the local calling plans
in the Tampa Bay area, there is no geographic split
which will not result in 1l0-digit dialing being
required for a significant volume of traffic.
Therefore, GTE believes the overlay is the least
disruptive and most long-term solution for this area.
No customers will be required to make a number change,
and cellular phones will not have to be reprogrammed.

If an overlay is implemented, the dlaling
pattern for all local extended area service, or EAS,
and extended calling service, or ECS calls, would be
10 digits. If a geographic split is implemented, I
have a exhibit in my testimony outlining which areas
could still be dialed on a 7-digit basis, and which
areas reaquire 10-digit dialing.

Whether or not an overlay is implemented,

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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GTE does is not support dialing ECS calls on a 1-plus
10-digit basis. The ECS routes within at 813 area
code are all local calls and toll competition ir not
alloved on these routes. With the implementation of
intralATA presubscription normally when the customer
dials the digit, the digit 1, the call is transported
by the customer's chosen carrier. On local-only ECS
routes, we would be disturbing the basic premises of
intralATA presubscription if we were to implement
1-plus 10-digit dialing on these routes with all ECS
calls being routed to GTE instead of the presubacribed
carrisr. In addition, GTE's billing system will not
recognize a l-plus call as local ECS.

In summary, the overlay plan is the best
method to provide uniformity and consistency
throughout the metropolitan area. It avoids the
confusion of having different dialing patterns for the
same type of call in an area where people live and
work between the communities. Mr. Gancarz will be
testifyinging as to GTE's role as the administrator,
code administrator, for the area and what that
involved. And at the appropriate time, if questions
are asked, I will respond to the allegations thai I've
lied and n.. followed the guidelines and any questions

that the Commissioners may have on ECS calls and code

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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conservation.

NS. CASWELL: Thank you. Ms. Menard is
avajlable for cross.

CRAIRMAN JONNSOM: Ms. Caswell, the
exhibits. I didn't mark those,

MB. CABWBLL: Yes. ] guess we would need
the Exhibit BYM-1 marked as Exhibit 3.

CHEAIRMAN JONMSON: Okay. We will mark
that -- was that it, just the one?

MB. CASWELL: Yeah. There's one, the
Gancarz.

CHEAIRMAM JOMMSBOM: That's what 1 was
confusing. We'll mark that as Exhibit 3.

(Exhibjit 3 marked for identification.)

COMMISSIONEBR GARCIA: Ms. Menard, do you
have the exhaust dates on the different plans that
ve'vae looked at?

WITHNESS NEMARD: Yes.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Could we just go
through -- since we've got them here, could wve just go
through thems 1, 2, 3, 4, just so it will be easier for
her later on to come back to it and -- what is the
exhaust date on the Option 1, which is the one that
GTE favors.

WITHESS MEMARD: 5ix to eight years.
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COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And then Option 2, how
fast doss Pinellas run out?

WITHNESS MEMARD: 5Seven to nine years.

COMMISOIONER CLARK: Wait, wait, wait.
You're on Option 27

COMMISSIONBR GARCIA: Option 2. I'm glad
you said "wait, wait, wait®™ because 1 was writing on
the wrong -- seven to nine on the Pinellas?

WITHRSS MENARD: Yes --

COMMISSOIONER GARCIA: -- part of it.

WITNESS MENARD: And three to five years on
the Hillborough-Pasco.

COMMIBSIONER CLARX: I'm sorry. Say that
again. It could be.

WITHNESS NENARD: Seven to nine years for the
Pinellas side, and three to five years for the
Hillborough side.

COMMISSIOMER GARCIA: That would meet the
criterion: if we were to change Pinellas's number, it
comes within the criterion in the sense they'd wait at
least seven to nine years.

CONNISSIONER CLARK: No, it wouldn't,
bacause the others --

WITNESS MEMARD: The basic quidelines are

eight to ter. years --
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CONMISSIONMBR GARCIA: Yeah, but the other
one is not changing.

WITHESS MEMARD: And what I would say before
vhen we give you all of these numbers, which you have
to remember is in 1996 we splic 813, It was
anticipated it would last until 2002.

COMNISSIONER GARCIA: What year was it
splic?

WITHESA NEMARD: 1996.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: 19867

WITHNESS MENARD: '96. Two years ago we
split and it was anticipated it would last until 2002.

COMMISSIONMER JACOBS: The remaining 813
would last, not the --

WITNESS MEMARD: No. This area would last
until 2002 before we would need any relief; the 813
area code.

COMMIBSIOMER GARCIA: Plan 1,

COMMISSIONEBR CLARK: Joe, can I interrupt
for just a minute? Does it make a difference if -- in
the terms of exhaust if Pinellas retains 813 or gets
7272

WITHNESS MEMARD: As far as cxhausting, no.
The question is the guidelines, on any of the plans

Hillborough would drastically violate the guidelines
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if they took the new code because we'll need relief
sooner in Hillsborough.

COMNISSIONER CLARK: I'm sorry, that doesn't
sake sense to me from this standpoint --

WITHMRESS MEMARD: What the guidelines are
anticipated to do, number one, that the area that has
the most NXXs assigned keeps the existing code and the
area that has the least number makes the change on the
anticipation that that area would go longer before
they'd need to change again.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Okay.

WITNESS MEMARD: But as far as whether
Hillborough has 813 or Pinellas has 813, it doesn't
impact the exhaust dates for those areas. The exhaust
dates are based on how many codes are in an NPA and
how many you're already using and how many you get
when we put a new code in.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Okay.

COMMISSBIONER GARCIA: Option 3.

WITMESS MEMARD: On Option 3, Pinellas is
six to eight years, and Hillborough is four for six

yaars.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And then the final

ona’t

WITHMRESS MEMARD: Six to eight years for

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10
11
12
13
14

15

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

196

Pinellas, and five to seven years for Hillborough.

CEAIRMAN JORMSOM: Any other questions? 1Is
it witness available for cross?

MS. CABWEBLL: ©Oh, yes, I'm sorry.

CEAIRMAN JOHNBOM: sStart with MCI.

MR. BOND: Good afternoon. MCI has no
questions.

MN8. RULBR: No questions {rom ATAT.

CHAIRMAN JOEMSOMN: Mr. Beck.

MR. BECE: Thank you, Chairman Johmson, I do
have some questions.

CROSB EXAMINATION
BY MR. BECK:

Q Ms. Menard, let me ask you about three
different references in your testimony and in your
deposition which the Staff intends to put into
evidence.

The first is on Page 4 ot your prefiled
testimon’, Line 16 through 17. As one of the reasons
for supporting the overlay plan at Line 16 you state
that one-half of customers would be required to make a
number change. That's referring to the geographic
split there; is that correct?

A That's correact.

] Then in your deposition on Page 12, Lines 1
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and 2, vhen referring to what you see as one of the
benefits of the overlay plan you say the fact that no
one has to change their number: do you see that?

A Yas.

Q Then on Page 15 of your deposition at
Line 19, you say that there are a lot of businesa
customers who don't want a number change.

Bach of those three instances I've cited to
you, you've referred to the area code as making a
number change: is that right?

A When I consider my telephone number, my
telephone number at my office is 813-483-2526. It'e a
10-digit number. If Hillsborough County were to get
the new area code, my number would now be
727-483-2526. Anyone that is calling me from anywhere
outside of the Tampa Bay area has got to dial a
different number because of the area code. 1 consider
the area code as part of my 10-digit number.

Q Do you think it's misleading to the public
to say that an area code change is equivalent to a
number change?

A As far as people needing to contact that
person outside of this area, it is a number change,
and I loo* upon the number as a 10-digit number.

Q Have you had discussions with others at GTE
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as a strateqgy decided to call the area code change a
number change?

A No.

Q Let me refer you to Page ) of your prefiled
testimony, and beginning at Lines 9 and 10, one of the
reasons you provide for supporting the overlay plan is
that you believe that the 81) area code already covers
the smallest geographic area in Florida; is that
right?

That's correct.

Q And I get the reason for that is if it's

already the smallest you wouldn't want to subdivide it

as your reasoning; is that correct?

} That is correct.

Q Broward County is an area code in itself, is
it not?

} I discovered that after I filed the

testimony. I still believe it is one of the
smallest -- it may not now be the smallest; it's the
sacond smallest.

Q what research or investigation did you do
before filing your testimony?

) 1 loocked at a map of the area codes and,
unfortunat~ly, it did not have the %54 showing Broward

County on the map 1 looked at at that point.
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MR. BRCEK: Madam Chairman, I have an exhibit
I'd like to pass out. (Hands document to witness.)

I'd like to ask the Commission to take
official recognition of the square miles of Broward,
Hillborough, Pasco and Pinellas Countjies. And I've
handed out this exhibit that w,uld permit the
commission to take official recognition of those
itenms.

CEAIRMAM JOHNSOM: Do you want us to mark
this as an exhibit also?

MR. BECK: Then it would be helpful to have
that as an exhibit.

CEAIRMAM JORMSOM: I'l]l mark this as
Exhibit 4, “Excerpts from 1997 Florida Statistical
Abstract," and seeing no objection, we'll take
official recognition of the information contained.

(Exhibit 4 marked for identification.)

Q (By Mr. Beck) Ms. Menard, do you have that

exhibit in front of you?

A Yes, I do.

Q You see for that for Broward County, which
is an area code by itself, it says for land area
Brovard County has 1,208.9 square miles?

A 1 ses that number, yes.

Q And they alsc give the total land and water
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area as well, do they not?

A Yes, I believe they do.

Q Okay. Now, if you look at Hillsborough
County, compared to Broward's 1,208, Hillbornugh has
1,051 square miles; is that right?

That 1s correct.

A
Q And Pinellas has 280.2 square miles?

A I see that.

Q So would you agree that Hillsborough and
Pinellas alone have more square miles than does
Broward County?

A I'd agree with that.

Q In fact, the 813 area code includes quite a
bit more than just Hillsborough and Pinellas County,
doas it not?

A It includes a portion of Pasco. It would

rnot include all of the number for Pasco because a

great portion of Pasco is in Bell’s territory.

Q So would you agree now that the 811 does not
cover the smallest geographic area in Florida as you

stated in your prefiled testimony?

A I would agree. And as ] said earlier, I now

feel that it's probably the sccond smallest.

Q And what research did you do to back that

up?
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A Looking at the current map of the 813 area
codes.

Q Just visually looking at a map?

A Yes.

a If the Commission goes tc a geographic
split, all of the proposals have Pinellas and

Hillsborough counties with different area codes; is

that right?
A That's correct.
Q You see that as dividing the Bay area,

something that is undesirable: is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Could you also see from a customer's
viewpoint that it might give them more information
about vhere they are calling, and in that respect be a
positive aspect of the geographic split?

A For some customers that's correct. The
wvhole reason why we we put in ECS, though, was that
the customer said they wanted to be able to have
cheaper calling, they considered it a local community,
they wanted to be able to go to the airport, be able
to dial the same digits to dial for Pinellas to be
picked up as they did for Hillsborough, .nd those are
the reason why we put in ECS, was because everybody

wanted 7-digit dialing.
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Q In your exhibit, Exhibit No. 3, you go
through the different dialing patterns, whether it be
7 or 10 digits, with respect to various call --- with

respect to various proposals on the area code; is that

right?
A That is correct.
Q And you make a separate distinction between

local calls and EAS calls on your exhibit; is that

right?
A That is correct.
Q Customers -- there's no difference

whatsoever to a customer between an EAS call and a

local call, is there?

A I do not know.

Q As far as their dialing and the cost of a
call?

) 3 A8 far as dialing and cost, no, there is no
difference.

Q In fact, an EAS from a customer is a local

call, wouldn't you say?

A I would think so. And that's one of the
reasons why I did them separate is because under the
split proposals, there are a number of options where
BAS calls mv~t go to 10-digit dialing, and that's why

I had them separate to give the most information to
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the Commission.

Q In fact, under the geographic split, the
dialing simply changes if you call into a different
area code, you dial ten digits as opposed to seven?

A That is correct.

Q Doesn't that pretty much explain it all, howv
how the dialing changes?

A Pretty much, yes, sir. And that's why I did
the exhibit, to show what the different calling
patterns would be for each individual area that we're
talking about in this 813 area code.

Q Do you think the mandatory 10-digit dialing
vwith the overlay plan would have an effect on young
children trying to learn phone numbers, of themselves
and their friends?

A It may have. And that's one of the reasons
what we planned to do was the same approach that
Ameritech had done, where you give coloring books to

the school kids so they can underutand about the new

dialing.
Q What coloring books is that?
A Coloring books that go to all the schools so

the kids learn about the new dialing.
Q I1f they went to a geographic split, that

wouldn't be necessary since their calls within their
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area would still be Beven digits: is that right?

A Depending on where they are calling, if it's
betwesn the area code or within -- between area codes,
yes.

Q Let me ask you a little bit about your
background. You've a masters degree in accounting; is
that right?

a That is correct.

Q What is your background in market research?

A Oonly having contact with the results of
market research and having over the years at times
talked to some market research prople.

Q Have you ever designed a survey?

A No, I have not.

Q Have you ever been involved in the wording
of questions that are used in surveys?

A I have reviewed the questions in the
surveys, but I have not been the one that had the
final say on saying whether it was the correct way to

say it from a market research standpoint.

Q What was your involvement with respect to
the survey done by -- that GTE had done on the area
code?

A * reviewed the questions to make sure that

from a regulatory viewpoint I did not see any problem
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with the questions.

MR. BECK: Madam Chairman, I have two
exhibits. ©One is an excerpt from the Survey
Questionnaire, and the second is a response to GTE to
a raquest for production of docusents by our office.
{Hands out documents.)

COMMISSIONER CLARE: Maybe Marsha or Tom
could help you pass those out sc we could go faster.

MR. BECK: Madam Chairman, 1 ask that the
excerpt from the Survey Questionnaire be marked as an
exhibit --

CHAIRMAN JOMMBON: It will be marked as
Exhibit 5.

(Exhibit 5 marked for identification.)

Q {(By Nr. Beck)} Ms. Menard, do you have
Exhibit 5 in front of you?

A Yesa, I do.

Q On the first page that has a Bates stamp 217
at the bottom.

A Yeas.

Q At the top of that the page it says "Final
Draft #6" for a survey; is that right?

A That is correct.

g Nkay. Was this the actual survey that was

used?
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A It's my understanding it is, yes.

Q What's your understanding based on?

A The documents we produced to the Commission,
to you.

Q But how do you know that this was the actual
survey that was used?

Because that's what the market research firm
gave us as far as their documentation on the survey

they did.

Q I take it there were five earlier drafts of
the survey that were reviewed by the Company and the
survey firm?

A That was my understanding based on that
comaent that is there, yes.

Q But you don't have any of those drafts
anymore?

A No, I do not.

Q Do you have the --

MR. BECEK: Madam Chairman, I would ask that
GTE's response to our request for production of
documents be marked as an exhibit.

CEAIRMAM JOENSON: It will be marked as
Exhibit 6.

(Exhibit 6 marked for identification.)

Q (Py Mr. Beock) Just for the record,
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Ms. Menard, let me read the request that we made to
GTE and the company's response. Our request asked GTE
to provide all correspondence and e-mail between GTE
and the firm that conducted surveys regarding the 813
area code. GTE's response was that GTE has no
documents responsive to this request. Virtually all
communication between GTE and the research firm was
handled by telephone calls, faxed copies of draft
materials which wvere marked up and returned, and an
occasional e-mpail. When the research project was
completaed all draft materials were discarded and the
e-mails were deleted. 1s that your understanding of
what GTE did with respect to draft materials?

A Yeos.

Q okay. And I guess this would go through
materials, what, as recent as last December of 19977

A That's my understanding, yes.

Q Why were all e-mails and all communications
between GTE and the firm deleted?

A Just bacause we have so much paper we don't
hold on to all of that.

Q Including any correspondence either, you
don't hold on to correspondence for a set period of

tima?

A It dupends on -- I was not the one
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responsible for doing this. 1 cannu. answer for that
departmant on what all of their poclicies are on
kesping stuff, My understanding is there was

virtually no correspondence between us; just mainly

e-mail,
Q And what is that understanding based on?
A My discussions with the people responsible

for having that survey produced.

Q And, again, the reason for deleting the
e-mall was just because it was getting cumbersome
xeeping all of that e-mail around?

A Yes.

M8. CABWELL: 1I°'d like to object to the
characterization of "all that e-mail.* The question
states “occasional e-mail.” I think your
characterization is inconsistent with that.

Q (Py Mr. Beck) Could you turn to the Bates
stamp 218. This page of the Survey contains portions
of what the surveyors told the people who they wvere
surveying; is that right?

A That's correct.

] And under Optiun 1 that was a gecgraphic
split description that was given to pecnle; is that
right?

A Yeos.
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Q okay. And there's a list of seven
descriptions that were given to the customers that
they would use as information on what a geographic
split was like; is that right?

b That is my understanding, yes.

Q Okay. And number one, the first thing the
customers were told was that your telephone number
would be changed to a new area code; is that right?

A Yasm.

<] Okay. You would consider that a negative to
a customer, would you not?

A I don't know. Some of the customers
testified they had to problem changing their area
cods.

Q But that's not a positive characteristic of
a plan, is it, that you have to change something?

A Oh, I would agree with that.

Q Okay. Why did you tell every -- isn't the
implication here that every customer would have to
have their area code changed?

A No. My understanding, the implication was
so the people could nnderstand -- because this was not
asking, "Pinellas, you're the ones that are going to
have to che 7Je your area code. hLere's the question.”

What we're asking, "If you were the ones who have to
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have your area code changed versus an overlay, does
that make an impact on how you teel about a geographic
split versus an overlay?”

Q Whare does it tell the customers only half
the customers would have an area code change? Doesn't
this imply that all customers, every customer would
have an arsa code change?

A It could be read to be that, yes.

Q And, of course --

A I do not think that was the intent of that
wording.

Q The second descripter says "You would need

to notify others of your new area code.”

A which is part -- consistent with No. 1.

Q That fact, that the customer is being told
thelr area code would he changed?

) Yes.

Q You would alsoc consider that a negative
aspect of the plan, would you not, as opposed to a

positive?

} ) Yes. And that's what people in 941 told me

when thay had to guvi a new area code.

Q The third item that you told customers was
that busin-~ases would have to revise all printed

materials displaying their telephone numbers and
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notify customers and suppliers. You would consider
that negative also, would you not?

A Yes.

Q And, again, that's assuming every business
had to change their area code as opposed to about half
of them; le that right?

A We're talking about for the area code that's
changing.

Q We're going to go through the rest, but let
me briefly go over to Option 2, which is the overlay
plan. And there's tive characteristics that you gave
the customers that overlay plan. The very first ona
is that no change in your current arca code or
telephons number; is that right.

A That is correct.

Q That's kind of a positive aspect of your
plan, is it not?

A Yes, it is.

Q Now, could you tell me why the first three
items people wers told about geographic splits were
all negative if the very first thing customers were
told about the overlay plan is a positive?

A No, I cannot.

Q Now, on the overlay, the Option 2, and it

says no change ir your current area code or telephone
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number, right? But nobody's telephone number under
any plan is going to be changed if you consider the
7-digit number a telephone number; is that right?

A That's correct. But I do not consider that
that's your telephone number.

Q You go back to the geographic split. Fourth
item, you provided positive comment. You would dial
neven digits for calls within your county; is that
right?

A Yes.

Q No. 5 is essentially the same both for
overlays and for gecgraphic splits, which tells
customers there would be no changes in free or
extended calling service: is that right?

A That's correct.

Q Again, on the No. 6, on the geographic
split, one of aspects is 10-digit calling, that 1s the
arsa code plus the normal 7-digit number to numbers in
other area codes in nearby counties. That's worded
negatively, is it not?

A I don't know how that is worded negatively.
How would you reword .t to word it pesitively?

Q I mean, it's a negative character’stic, that
you have to dial 10 digits to call somewhere?

A It c.pends on the way you look at it.
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COMMIBSIONER GARCIA: Ms. Menard, wouldn't
that ba a characteristic for any plan?

WITHNESS MEMARD: Yes.

COMMISSIOMER GARCIA: But I mean your plan
also?

WITHESS MEMARD: The characteristic of our
plan wvas all calls are 10-digit dialing.

COMMIBSIONER GARCIA: Right. This would be
true of any plan that was implemented.

WITHNESS MEMARD: Correct.

Q (Py Mr. Beck} And No. 7, Ms. Menard,
again, that's a negative, is it not, if you have a
cellular phone you have to take it in to be
reprogrammed at no additjional cost.

} That's part of one of the disadvantages of a
geographic split, yes.

MR. PECK: Ms. Menard, thank you. That's
all I have.

CHAIRMAN JOHEMBOM: Staff.

MNS. BROWN: Chalrman Johnson, we have a
composite exhibit identified as BYM-2, which is
Witnems Menard's February 17th, 14994, doponitlon
transcript, Depositi.n Exhibit Nos. 1 and 2, and an
Errata Sheet we'd like to have marked for

identification at this time.
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CHAIRMAM JOHNBON: We'll mark that as
Exhibit 7.
(Exhibit 7 marked for identification.)
CROSS EXAMINATION

Q Ms. Menard, do you know the calling volumes
betwveen Pasco and Pinellas County and Pasco and
Hillsborough County?

A No, I don't. The only thing that I had
looked at was how much -- on the normal splits we were
looking at how much ECS volume we had that would do
from seven digits and 10 digits, and that we're
talking about 15 million calls a month.

Q Can you get the calling volumes for us?
Easily, I don't know. Number one, of
course, anything that's a flat rate we don't have the
calling volumes. And I don't have statistics on the
toll routes. The only thing I easily have call

volumes on is it ECS routes.

Q Ms. Menard, wvhy don't you give us what
you've got, what you can get with respect to the ECS
calling volumes? Car von do that now, or would you
rather do it in a late-filed exhibit for us?

Lat me see vhat I've got on my plece of

aper here an’ see what I've got. Some of this I was
P
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doing while we were sitting here today. (Pause)
Q Maybe we ought to have it as a late-filed.
What we'd like to do is get the difference between the
ECS call volumes --
A Betwveen Hillborough.
Q -- between the different options.
CHAIRMAN JONNBONM: You're going to have a

late-filed, Staff?

NS. BROWN: Yes, please, and we'll call that
“pcS Calling Volumes for the Different Split Plans
between Pasco County and Pinellas and Hillsborough.™

COMMISSIOMER GARCIA: That was a short
title, by the way. (Laughter)

(Late~Filed Exhibit 8 identified.)

Q (By Ms. Brown) While we're on the subiject
of ECS, you may remember that in your deposition you
discussed varjous ways that customers know when they
are placing an ECS call.

A Yes.

Q If you have your deposition with you, we
were talking about that on Page 11.

Would you provide t.e various ways that you
were aware of that customers do know when th~y are

placing an ECS call?

A Of course, one of the ways is at the front
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of the directories, and as the witnesses testifjed
today, though, between directory closings, you know,
thers ara new codes that can be added.

One of the things that was a requirement
when we implemented the ECS in 1992, and is in our
switches today, is if a customer doesn't know, what
they can do is dial the call as a 1-plus and they get
a recording which says "It is not necessary to dial a
1 when calling this number. Extended calling service
rates apply for this call. Please hang up and try
your call again.” So that is one option that a
customer has, is they can try to dial it on an 1l-plus
basis, and if it is an ECS call they will get that
recording they’'ve got to redial.

a Let me interrupt you for a minute. But if

they dial it on a 7-digit basis they wouldn't get any

kind of --
A They won't get any -- that's correct.
Q So if they think they're dialing a plain old

local call, thay will never know?
b That is correct, until they get their bill.
CEAIRMAN JOHNEON: What would they have to
dial? They'd have .o dial 1 and the area code?
WITHNESS MEMARD: 1-plus. Because we are --

all toll is .ow on 10-digit dialing, they'd have to
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dial 11 digite. But if they didn't know, they could
pick it -~ if they didn't know that -- let ne --

COMNISSIONER GARCIA: Ms. Menard, if you had
a long distance carrier, wouldn't it pick up?

WITHESS MENARD: No. Because what happens
is on those callas, the l-plus, it first checks to see
if it's an ECS call before it would route it to the
presubscribed carrier.

COMNIBSSIONER GARCIA: So I couldn't make --

SITHNESS MEMARD: If you tried to make those
calle on thess routes -- see they are local routes.
Toll competition is not allowed. You cannot dial
10XXX -- if you dial 10XXX on these routes, you'll get
a recording saying you can't dial it that way because
competition is not allowed on these routes. That went
to the Florida Supreme Court.

COMMISSIOMEBR GARCIA: Okay.

Q (By Ms. Brown} A couple of --

COMNMISSIONER JACOBO: Excuse me. If the
customar dials a 1-plus call in order to get that
message, is there a iharge for that?

WITHESS MEMARD: No, there is no charge for

that.

Q (By Ms. Brown) If the customer is dialing

an 1-plus call to -- you said that your awitch would
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then -- what keys your switch to look to see if jt's

an ECS call?

Because it looks at the NBXX they are
dialing.

Q It doesn't do that for regular local calls?

A 1 can't say that, I mean the switch --

Q What I'm trying to get at is --

a It does that routing befofé it does the
norma)l route to the presubscribed carrier for a normal
toll call.

e Technically what would be the difficulty in
having it do that for any call it's dialed?

A Number one, the disadvantage of this
approach is if the customer knows -- if 1'm in Tampa
and I knov I want to call Clearwater, I'm never going
to go through dialing these 11 digits first to find
out if the call -- number one, the call will not go
through. If they really -- once they know it's ECS,
if they want to make the call, they have to redial the
number. So they have to mrke two calls to make one
call.

Q But you're assuming that the customer --
what I was asking was that the customer would have to
dial 11 digits. I wasn't. And just explain to ne ir

I'm way off base here, but what I'm trying to ask you

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




8

w

o

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

213

24

25

219

is could your system check to see if it's an ECS call
by just dialing -- by checking if the customer -- when
the customer dials just seven digits?

A The switch knows it's an ECS5 call when the

customer dials seven digits.

Q S0 you could put an intercept in without the
1=-plus?

A What you're talking about, putting
tremendous delays in over 15 million calls for lots of
people who know they are calling and want the call to
go through, know it's ECS, have no problem. On a
cost/benefit analysis I can't justify it. Plus one of
the problems is when you're talking about inte:capt is
in our GTE 5 we've used up all of the intercept
recordings. You're talking about buying additional

divices that cost approximately 17,000 per central

office.
] But ultimately your answer was yes?
A Yes, theoretically, you could do it. We

looked at that when we implezmented ECS.
COMMISSIONE? GARCIA: I missed you, Martha.
What exactly was Ma. Brown asking yuu you could do?
WITNESS MEWARD: Could I put an intercept
message svery time a customer makes an ECS call. And

the ansver is technically you can. Practically, I's
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violently opposed to it.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Okay. And I may be
way off base, could you just add a digit to it in
terms of ECS, l-plus, for the ECS calls?

WITHESS MEMARD: The problem you've got
right now is ve have presubscription, and because of
how we have changed the area codes and gone to the
interchangeable area codes I can't allow l=-plus seven
digit calling.

CONMNISSBIONER JACOBB: Walk me through that,
would you please?

WITHNESS MEMARD: When we went -- the first
part of when we were running cut of -- to ensure we
had a longer life to how long the NPA codes would
last, wve went to interchangeable NPA codes where they
changed what the second digit could be. And as part
of that we had to eliminate all 1-plus seven digit
routing for toll calls. All toll calls today are done
on a 1l-plus 10-digit basis.

COMMISSIOFI'R JACOBS: Okay.

Q (By Ms. Brown) So let me back up. Right
now you put in an intercept on ECS calls if a customer
diale 1 first.

A If they dial l-plus 10 digits they can find

out whether there is a charge for the call. It is not
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designed for a customer actually making a call; it is
designed for if a customer wants to find out if there
is a charge for the call.

Q Have you advertised to the customers that
that's a way for them to find out if there's a charge

for the call?

1 I do not know if we have. That was put in
in 1992 per Commission order and do I do not Know.

Q So as far as you know, as you're aware,
there has been no advertising?

A As far as I know there's not, because the
volume of the complaints. In locking at the
complaints, maybe get two a year. 1 didn't see any
reason to spend the money to advertise because I don't
get many complaints,

Q So you didn't spend the money to advertise?

A To the best of my knowledge we have not
spent the money to advertise. I've not seen any
advertisement.

Q Okay. Now, exrlain to us, 1 think =--

COMMISAIONER GARCIA: Martha, before we move
on, let me just -- would it be feasible to do exactly
the ECS calls -- in other words, to have you dial
1-plus 10 digite for all toll calls, for all ECS

calls.
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WITMESS MEMARD: No, we're violently opposad
to that. As I discussed in my summary, the problem
is, number one, my billing system can't handle it,
okay. Bo right away I‘'ve got a problem that I can't
do it today. VW¥We're talking about a year, two years
avay before I can change my billing system so I could
handle it. I also think -- as far as I'm concerned I
try not to be anticompetitive, and to me you're lying
to the customers -- because what we have been telling
the customers 18 under intralATA presubscription, when
you 1-plus dial a call, it goes to your presubscribed
carrier. Well, these calls do not go to the
presubscribed carrier. They are GTE calls. MCI local
can get those calls because they are certified local,
they can handle those calls as a local provider. HNCI
long distance is not allowed to handle those calls.

S0 those calls would need to be routed to GTE Florida.
And to me that's against all of the precepts of what
we have been doing with presubzscription,

COMMISSIONE) ZLARK: I'd like to follow up
on that. If I'm a GTE customer and I have Sprint as
both my inter- and intralATA presubscribed carrier and
I dial 1, area code and a number, and it is an ECS
route,

WITNESS NEMARD: You'll get a recording
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saying the number cannot be completed as dialed.

COMMISSIOMER CLARK: So will it tell me just
to dial the 10 digits?

WITNESS MEMARD: Now, 1'd have to go back
and look at all of the recordings. I think what ve
tell the customer is redial the number. 1It's a
7-digit number. Because it's a local call.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's all B8131.

WITMESS MEMARD: It's all 813.

COMMIBSIONER CLARK: Tell me how that's
going to work when it's not all B13.

WITNESS MEMARD: Well, the plan was, under
the overlay, everybody was going to dial 10 digits for
everything.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: HNot under the overlay.
How will it work on a geographic split?

WITMESS MEMARD: On a geographic split most
ECS routes are going t~ be 10 digits

COMMISSTOWER CLARK: But I want to know with
respsct to the presubscription.

WITMESS MEMARD: It won't change. You'll
dial it as a 10-digit local call. 1f you dial it as a
1-plus you'll get a recording saying you can’t dial
the call. The difference, it will now tell you to

dial 10 dig s.
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COMMISBIONBR CLARK: Okay. It will tell me
to dial without the 1.

WITWESS MEMARD: I don't know. I have to
check on that.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: [ mean that's very
important. Because unless you tell them exactly what
they need to dial they're going to wonder what did I
do vrong?

WITNESS MEMARD: And, of course, part of
that is covered in the front of your directories where
it tells you here ls the NXXs you can call. Local or
ECS.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: You don't always have a
directory.

WITNEBS MBMARD: 1 agree with that.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: And even when you do
it's hard to find that information.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: And you said they are
out of date also.

WITNESS MEMARD: Potentially for a new NXX
that gets assigned. They are not out of date for all
of the existing --

COMMISSIONEBR GARCIA: You just said a few
moments ago that you've run out of recording devices.

SITWESS MBMARD: In our GTE 5, yes, because
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we have a number of intercept messages. The industry
has certain guidelines, certain messages you use for
certain type routing --

COMMISSIOMER GARCIA: #Wouldn't a geographic
8plit regquire that you -—-

WITNESS MEMARD: We have an intercept
message for geographlic splits.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Okay.

Q (By Ms. Brown) So you testified just a
second ago that you can't bill for 1-plus 10 digits
ECB.

That is correct.

Q Technically, though, it's possible?

A Technically it is possible. We're violently
opposed to it but it's technically possible.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: And your reason is it's
about 517,000 per swi’ch.

WITNESS MEMARD: To do an ‘ntercept. But
I'm talking abou: the routing. 1 thought she was
talking about the reuting, not the intercept. <Change
all of ECS calls to 1-plus calls,

CONMIBSSIONBR GARCIA: And you have to
explain to me what you mean by "violently opposed”
just so ~- since ve are in your service terrltory?

L .PNESS MEMARD: You are talking my switch

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




[

~N

w

-

O

[ ]

~

-]

10

11

12

12

14

13

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

226

people would kill me, ckay. (Laughter)
COMMIBOIONER GARCIA: Now we know where the
violence is directed.

Q {By Ms. Prown} In your deposition you
mentioned that GTE had looked at other options of
providing customers notification of ECS calls.

¥ Yeos.

Q And that you determined them not to be
worthwhile?

b Y That is correct.

Q I don't think we ever got into exactly what
those other options were that GTE considered.

A One -- you know, of course, we do have the
option they can call the operator and check on a
number. ©One, I think somebody talked about bullding a
Web Page, you know, and putting all of the NXXs on
there. Like I said before, part of it is a cost/
benefit thing. Given the volume of complaints, that I
get virtually none, I have a problem justify spending
the money trying to ask somecbody to keep up with some
data base that would be there for people to access.

Q Anything else you thought of? (Pause)

A Right offhand I can't think of anything

else.

Q If the Commission does decide to implement
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an overlay, will you explain what notices and
advertisenents you will put out in order to let
customars know about the relief?

A We had planned an extensive advertising
campaign if we went with the overlay because it is
something new for customers.

The initial plans, before we were going to
hearing since we were going to be implementing
permissive in March, we would have started with bill
inserts in February, just to let people know the
permissive period was coming and they had time to make
the change, but they could start working on
reprogramming any of their phones. We would be doing
billboarda, newspapers, more bill inserts, you know,
press conferences, being on radio, things like that.
And as I mentioned earlier to Mr. Beck, we had planned
on doing like Ameritech did and having coloring books
for all the kids in schools so they could understand
the change in the dialing and understand it.

] what about after the implementation of the
overlay, what plans had you designed to assint
customers if they were having troutle with 10-digit
dialing?

A I'm not familiar with anything specific on

that. Of cou—se, as part of the 10 digit part of what
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that was wvas to help all of the hotels/motels so that
when tourists come in they have information there so
they know it's 10 digit. I'm not aware of anything
specific that comes to my mind that we would do after
the mandatory was over.

o So it was really just advertising ahead of
time?

A Correct. And let the customers know ahead
of time. You know, part of that would be a factor if
how customers -- you know, if everybody seemed like
they were accustomed to it;: if they weren't, we would
continue doing the advertising.

Q Do you have any written documentation of the
plans, the advertising plans or the Ameritech phone
books?

A I know we have some confidential information
we provided Public Counsel on the advertising plan as
part of our production of documents.

o what about if the Commission implements a
geographic split, what notices and advertisements was
GTE preparing to do to prepare its customers for that?

A I would assume -- since I have been looking
at it -- it would be comparable to what we did when ve
split the 813 and the 941 area code two years ago.

And my recolle~tion is that's basically inserts,
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latters. You also -- we would do letters to business
customers, you know, letters to the alarm companies,
things like that, and bill inserts and that type
stuff, of =y recollection.
Q No radio spots, no advertisements?
A Not to the degree that you would --
Q Coloring books?
A No, not to the degree you would need on the
overlay. Of course you'd have --
COMMIBSIOMER GARCIA: Why is that? Because
there's less confusion?
WITNESS MENARD: Pecople are more used to it.
I mean the people that are changing would know they
have to change thelr area code. People have been
through splits before. Their other thing would be,
depending on the timing -- and, of course, the comment
that was made this morning, we've already missed, the
directory closed for St. Pete and Clearwater, so what
ve did before, vhere we can't get it into the
directories in time for the directories -- correct for
the life of the directory, then we send out stickers
for them to put on the front of their directory to
remind them that there's a new area code.
COMMISBIONER GARCIA: So you regulire much

less custom - sducation there, therefcre, when you go
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a geographic split?

WITHRSS MEMARD: I would say that's probably
corraect. Only bacause of the norm, and the overlay is
a nev thing. Of course, they have the overlay in
Maryland. They are in the process of deing it in
Atlanta. And over time I would imagine that the
advertising, the things you would do for an overlay,
would get to be like they were for a split once people
get used to this is the way we now do area codes is do
overlays and people get used to it so you don't need
to do the same type of educatijon.

Q wall, what if the Comminsion decided to
implement both a split and an overlay at the same
time?

My people will scream.

Q Well, actually, we were on what would GTE do
to prepare customers?

A I don't know. I mean, my problem is -- the
thing that bothers me the most about that type of
approach is we're going through all of this change.
What we were trying to do was yes, unfortunately.
Somebody has to do something to change for any relief
plan we looked at. But we locked upon if you did the
overlay, then we'd go through the change one time and

we're done. If we have to go through and do a split,
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and then immediately do an overlay behind it, I think
ve're going to have such confusion -- I haven't even
thought to what we would have to do advertising-wise
to be able to explain to the customers why they are
going through changes right one on top of the other.

COMNISSPIONER CLARK: What did you mean by if
a split and then an overlay on top of it?

WITHNESS MEMARD: That's what -- your counsel
asked me the question. What we would do is we would
split -- 813 and 727 would go to Pinellas and
somevhere wve'd divide the line for Pasco, which is the
different options we've looked at. And we would
immediately plan that two years from now an overlay
would be implemented in B13. We are going to run out
of numbers quickly in 813 again if we do a geographic
split,.

COMMISBIONER CLARK: I'm sorry. Let's go
back, then, to the exhibits. And you imrediately have
to go to that because ln Option 2 it would be three to
five years before PascosHillsborough would need it
again?

WITNESS MEMARD: And you start planning two

years befors the eplit.
COMNISSIONER CLARK: That assumes it would

be anothsr ovei.ay and not a geographic split, right?
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COMMISSIOMEBR GARCIA: Right. But the
reason --

WITEESS MEMARD: I strongly disagree that we
have a good dividing line now. After we do one more
split, there is no dividing line left, 1 don't think,
that you can justify.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: The problem,
Commigsioner, is I believe that Pasco County is too
small to ever take its own area code.

WITHNESS MEMARD: Correct.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: And your view is that
we couldn't do a split within a county?

WITNESS MEMARD: We can do one, but you are
talking about massive 10-digit local calling that I
don't think I -- to me it's just like the situation in
Miami at that point, it has to be an overlay.

COMMISSIONER CLARX: What you're suggesting
with an overlay is massive 10-digit dialing, right?

WITHESS MEMARD: With a split we're putting
in massive 10-digit dialing. Over 1% million calls a
month are going to be 10-digit dialed, so that's why
we looked upon the easier solution is go through it
one time and we're done. Because a lot of calls are
going to have to be dialed on a 10-digit basis

anyplace we draw the line.
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MP. CABWELL: Could I ask for &
clarification on your last question? I heard you to
ask Ms. Menard the question of what would happen if
you did an overlay and a split at the same time. And
what she answered was if you did a split first and
then an overlay, and I'm wondering if that was your
question, or was your question something different?

Q (Sy Ms. Brown) Well, Ms. Menard, why don't
wva give this a name, why don't we call this Option 5,
and I think we discussed this in your deposition to
some extent, the possibility that the Commission could
make the decision here to deal with this exhaust in a
way that it implemented a geographic split, and
implemented an overlay at the same time that would be
effective at a later date, at the time that the
nusbers in Hillsborough County, since they are
projected to exhaust sooner than Pinellas, at the time
thay ran out, the overlay would already he in place to
be used 1f necessary.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I would be violently
opposed to that, just so we get the record straight.
{Laughter)

MS. CABWBLL: I think that's what she

ansvered.

MS. 3"NWM:t Yes. 1 did, too, so why don't
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we Nove on.

Q (By Ms. Brown) If the Commission did do
this -- we're not moving on. 1 have one more

question.

Is it possible for GTE to allow 7 and
10-digit dialing at the same time until the need for
NXXs would warrant implementing mandatery dialing?

a Generically --

Q Tachnically.

A Technically -- let's talk about today.
Okay. Today my switches are set up where I think
7-digit calls can be dialed on a 10-digit call and
they vork fine. I mean, that's part of going through
the whole permisaive period, was the fact you can dial
the call either a way.

Once vwe start doing a split, I'd have to go
back and look, because I don't know if then we would
start running into code conflict problems if we
started allowing you to do both at the same time.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: T think Staff is
speaking about the long term, if I'm net mistaken.

WITHESS NEMARD: Yes. If I immediately
started planning for an overlay so people could start
reprogramming going to 10 digit for local calls,

7-digit local calls.
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Q This would just be within the Hillsborough
arsa, the 813 area. How long would it take you to
£ind out if that would be a problem or not? Could we
get a late-filed exhibit?

A Yeah, we should be able to get a late-filed
exhibit.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I'm just curious.
We're not really considering this now. You're just
preparing for the future?

MS. BROWN: As Staff is inclined to do, we
want to have as full a record as necessary, as we
possibly can. And this was an option that doesn't
sesn to have been specifically identified to this
point.

WITHESS MEMARD: And so the exhibit -- what
would you call the exhibit?

CEAIRMAN DBABOM: Do you want a late-filed
exhibit?

NS. BDROWN: Permissive 7 and 10-digit
dialing for the 813 area code, feasibility of, why
don't wve call it that.

COMMIPSIONER JACORS: Wwould you want to base
it on one of existing split options as the first round
and then go from there? Does it matter?

NS8. BROWNM: Either one would be fine.
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WITHESS MEMARD: But we're talking about for
the Hillsborough portion of the 813, correct?

M. PROWN: VYes.

COMMISSIONBR GARCIA: It wouldn't be for the
Hillsborough, it would be for the 813 portion of any
one of thess.

MB. DBROWH: Yes.

WITHNESS MEMARD: Okay.

CONMISSIOMNER DEASOM: Be Late-filed
Exhibit No. 9.

(Late-Filed Exhibit 9 identified.)

Q (By Ma. Brown) Ms. Menard, you've read
Ms. Paul's testimony haven't you, MCI's witness.

A MCI's witness, yes. I didn't remember the
name.

Q And you remember that she recommended
several steps that the Commission should take before
implementing an overlay?

A Yes.

Q One of her recommendations had to do with
number portability. Can you tell us what the status
of perpanent number portability is in the Tampa area

right now?

A Yes. As was discussed at our steering

committee me. .ing last Friday -- last Friday, I
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believe it was, the southeastern LLC, which is your
Limited Liability Corporation, has vacated the
contract with Perot (ph) since they could not meet the
time frames of being able to put in, and has signed a
new contract with Lockheed, and that also occurred for
the other two regions that had originally picked
Perot.

At this point it's my understanding they
have not finalized the date that we will be able to
begin testing. The date suggested by Lockheed was to
be able to start testing May lith. And the problem is
wa've almo got to do -- this just does not just impact
Tampa. We're talking about Phase I and Phase II, and
Tampa is a Phase II office that was supposed to be
first quarter of this year, through May of this year.
You also have Atlanta, which is a first quarter -- was
supposed to actually be fourth quarter of last year.

What has still got to be worked out is that
you have to do all of the testing and implementation
for Phase 1, and you have to do all of the testing and
implementation for Phase II. And I think it's GTE's
position you're going to need to do something to Phase
1 before you do Phase II. So you learn from that
exparience, and we don't all do the same mistakes

twice.
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So to the best of my knowledge, we don't
have the final date yet for when Tampa will be
implemented, but we will do it as quickly as possible.
And we will be filing the request to the FCC for the
walver since it was beyond our control as far as being
able to mest the guidelines. I can't do it when I
have no database.

COMMISSIONBR CLARK: Ms. Menard, I don't
know that you answerad the question.

WITNESSE MEMARD: She asked me what the
current plans vers.

COMMISSIONEBR CLARK: And I understood you to
say that possibly you'll be testing May 11th.

FITNESS MENARD: No. What they're talking
about is Lockheed is talking about having the database
available to begin testing May 1l1lth.

COMMISSIONEBR CLARK: Let's assume that goes
well. When can you implement --

WITKESS NBMARD: Those dates haven't been
worked out yet. The jndustry is working on dc-iding
the test dates. 1 don't know if they are going to
test for three weeks, four weeks. You Kknow, they are
still working out all of the testing time frames. And
then I have a number of central offices that have to

ba convertad.
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The original plans were it was going to be
tested in August of '97 in the Atlanta area, and they
would have implemented Atlanta area starting October
197 and rinishing March 1998. We would have started
doing our stuff in the beginning of this year and
would have completed by May 15th. We are already nine
months behind. And I do not know, though, that wve
will take nine months past May 15th to finish. But at
this point the industry is still working on working
this out because of this latest change in plans.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: If I can summarise
that, you're about nine months behind right now?

WITNESS MEMARD: Right now we're nine months
behind. I'm hoping we won't be nine months behind
when we hit the end but I do not know.

Q (By Ms. Brown) When you're talking about
finish, you mean finishing testing.

No. I'm talking about finishing conversion
of the offices.

Q Oh, okay. Are you aware that the Commisaion
is currently conducting a utilization review of
numbers that would include such things as rate center
consolidation and number pooling?

| Yes. I furnished about that much paper

(indicating) t the Staff for the 81) and 914 area
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codes, YeS.

MS. BROWM: No further guestions. Thank
you.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Ms. Menard, can I ask
you about that because I did -- I quess the other
witnesses mentioned the need to do a better Jjob of
pooling. I guess that means coming down to a thousand
NXXs -- is it NNXe?

WITHNESS MEMARD: NXXs8.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: As opposed to 10,000.
Where are we on that?

WITHESS MEMARD: My understanding Ameritech
is currently in the -- doing a test to see how that
works. Everything I have seen and read, I think we're
probably a year to two years away before having that
type solution available. Because you're talking about
major changes to sBystems and all. There are still a
lot of things that haven't been worked out.

I mean, number ocne, in most of my NXXs I
doubt there are many that I've got a thousand block
available that I could de something with, just
because, numbar one, the way you used to assign
numbers -- especially, like, when we were step
offices -- you deliberately took numbers during the

different blocks because of how it worked in the
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switch, you know, s0 you didn't segregate that way.

One of the gquestions that I have not seen
the answer on how they were going to work it out is
going to be let’'s assume ATLT gets a new NXX that they
are going to make be number pooled -- because somebody
still has got to get assigned that NXX, or at least I
think theoretically that's the way they are looking at
it. Then what could happen is ATLT may take the first
thousand block and Teleport may take the second
thousand block, and on down the thing.

One of the things that happens is going to
be -- when we're talking about long-term number
portability, one of the things that happens is as you
have numbers assigned, or they are portable, you have
a database vhere you start doing look-up and all.
Well, one of the questions is do 1, therefore, have to
put all of those individual numbers -- it impacts how
we put the numbers in the databases for look-up. Who
is respoasible for doing intercept messages if a
number is not assigned? There are a lot of technical
things that have to be worked out on this number
pooling. The current SS?7 network can't route that
way. It doesn't -- not do the translations to do it.
So what you're talking about, the only place we can do

this pool.ng-type arrangement is where we have
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long-term number portability already implemented.

COMMISBIONBR CLARK: And that's the thing
that's nine montha behind right now?

WITHESS MENARD: That's correct. For the
813, wvhere we are rupning out, it is not a viable
solution at all.

CONMISSIONER CLARK: What about rate
ceantar --

WITHESS MEMARD: Consolidation?

CONMMISSIONER CLARK: -- consolidation.

WITHESS MEMARD: That is one of the things
Staff is looking at.

one of the problems you have with that, as I
discussed in my deposition, is given the current
Commiesion pomition that we can't even du rate
regrouping, that that's a viclation of the law, I
don't know how we do rate center consclidation.
Because that's, in a sense, rate progression on a
different scala.

CONMMISSIONSR CLARK: You'll have to explain
that to ma.

WITNESS MEMARD: Okay. What you're talking
about on a rate center consolidation might be -- If we
go to -- probably it would be easier. If you go to my

deposition e.nibit, at the end of that exhibit there
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are some pages that show what the current rate centers
are.

COMMISSIOMBR CLARK: Tell me the page
number.

WITNESS MEMARD: Page 68. The real example
that shows you part of what we're talking about would
be on Page 69.

When you look at Tampa, Tampa starts at the
bottom of Page 68. We have Tampa Central, we have
Tampa EBast, I’'ve Tampa North. These are all shown in
that second column as far as our A-18 rate centers,
Tampa South and Tampa West. Tampa, for the LERG,
which is the local exchange routing guide, counts
Tampa as one toll center. But in our toll tariffs,
and in all of our local calling plans, each area of
Tampa has its own different calling. Sco if you look
across the columns, as far as the EAS areas, which
would be your flat rate seven digit, and your ECS,
which would be your $.25 calls, theose different areas
call different arsas. They don’'t call the same

pPlaces.

80 iln rate center consolidation, what you
might be talking about is where, for instance, Tampa
West has flat rate free calling to Clearwater. And

rate center .onsolidation, what I would be doing is
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saying that all of these offices of where all they can
call, now maybe Tampa Central can call all those same
areas. 50 they get expanded local free calling.

Well, I can tell you right now, if I'm going to expand
free local calling, I'm going to want to raise rates.
And my understanding of what MCI had proposed in their
testimony is a revenue neutral, i.e., vhere you take
into fact that you're no longer charging toll, or no
longer charging ECS and do that. Under the current
Florida law, I don't -- and given the Commission
position on we can't do rate progressions, 1 don't see
any way wa can do it under the current Florida law.

COMMIBSIONRR CLARK: Okay.

CEAIRMAN JOEMNBON: What would be the reason
for raising the rates?

WITHESS MEMARD: Because they are going to
get more calls. They can call more areas oh a flat
rate free basis.

CEAIRMAM JOENSOMN: It's not a cost base kind
of ===

WITNESS MENARD: No. It's going to cost me
monay to do that.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Because you'll no

longer have ECSH.

WITNESS MEMARD: And it's going to cost pe
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more in facilities. When you put in a flat rate free
calling, people tend to call more.

CEAIRMAN JONMBON: 5o tell me again the
facilities, what would be the added cost? I know the
value of service argument would be the cost --

WITERSS NEMARD: Because .hey are going
to -- by definition if it went to flat rate free
calling, people that are objecting now to paying the
gquarter for an ECS, they don't want to do it, well, 1if
it's free then they have no reason not to make the
call.

CHAIRMAN JOMNSOM: Because they will be
using the network more, your argument is.

WITNRSS MEMARD: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: And it's your view that
if the present law says under yocur rate cap plan
regrouping is not allowed you can't.

WITNESS MBMARD: No, that's the Commission’'s
position.

COMMISSIONNR CLARK: I realize that. But
it's your position, given that state of the law, you
would not advocate rate center consolidation.

WITNESS NEMARD: That is correct.

COMMISSIONEBR CLARK: If it were no. the

case, do you think rate center conscl idation is
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something that should be pursued in order to avoid --
in order to conserve more phone numbers.

WITWESS MEMARD: There is no guestion if 1
had a clean slate, okay, and could say look at the
cost, look at what revenue I lose, and be able to go
to the Commiesion and say, okay, now for Tampa, 1 am
and maybe Tampa -- Tampa is so big I doubt I'd get rid
of all of the rate centers in Tampa, but it could be
that maybe I'd go down to two in Tampa. But
therefore, I may get rid of New Port Richey -- I mean,
other areas I would actually get rid of rate centers.

I think that is something that could be used
to help cut down on the need for numbers in the
future, yes. Given the current state we're at, I
don't know how practical that is.

COMMIBBIOMER CLARK: Okay.

CEAIRMAN JOMNBOM: Explain to me how
consolidating those rate groups, or those rate
centers, how that frees up telephone use.

WITNESS MEMARD: oOkay. Certainly.

Let's talk about Pinellas, okay. Today, if
someons -- St. Pete and Clearwater are both in
Pinellas County. It makes a difference to the new

carrier where they get a code assigned. If he gets

Clearwater Yyou can see that he can call St. Pete
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free, he can call Tarpon Springs free, and Tampa West
free, and then you've got the areas that they can call
ECS. If he picks to have the number in St. Pete, for
instance, he doesn't get free calling to Tarpon
Springs, okay?

So where they get the calling from makes a
difference. And if they want to completely duplicate,
so that the calling for their customers is identical
to the calling for my customers, then they have to gat
an NXX for every one of my rate centers.

Well, each one of those is 10,000 numbers,
If he's only geing to handle 10,000 for all of
Hillsborough and Pinellas area, if 1 did rate centar
-- I'd never rate center consolidate down that far,
okay. But, theoretically, maybe he'd only need 1 NXX.
Now, there's another solution that --

CONNMISSIONER DEABON: 50 it doesn't free up
telsphone numbers, it's -- for your use, it frees up
telephone numbers for the competitors. They don't
have to have as many points of presence, for lack of a
better term, within your network to duplicate the
rating and the calling that you provide.

WITEESS MEMARD: That's correct. And so my
system -- it's not just for them, and it's ulso for me

so that in my switches 1 know where the customer is
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dialing and what he's doling so I know how to rate the
call. I've got to do something with his code also.

Now, one of the things that GTE had looked
at bscause of this problem of rate center
consolidation, pooling, et cetera, one of the other
things that we're looking at is actuaily having, like
in conjunction with number portability, okay -- since
you're talking about number portability probably being
required to do a lot of these solutions -- is that we
would actually put an additional field in that number
portability record that would, in a sense, be for a
rate center ID. 5o that what could happen is in that
case MCI could, maybe, then assign 1 NXX for all of
Hillsborough and Pinellas County, and you do this
look-up in the number portability database to say,
*"Oh, wait a minute. That customer is really in
Clearwater versus this customer is really in St. Pete
versus this customer is really in Tampa North." So
that then you could rate the calls appropriate to
where the customer really is located.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But don't you run into
problems with the competitors, that they would be
getting a number that historically has been identiflied
as a Clearwater number where the person would be

living in 5.. Petersburg.
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WITHNESS MEMARD: You're talking about these
ars new codes.

COMMISSIONER DEASBON: Oh, these are totally
new codes. So there would not be that problem of
identification in Pasco.

WITMRSS MEMARD: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER JACOBB: I have a couple of
questions. In your deposition over on Page 24 you
talk about -- and subsequent pages, you talk about
inefficient use of NXXs, and also code conflicts.

Prom a layman's perspective could you help me
understand how that applies?

WITHESS MEMARD: Sure. What we're talking
about -- and part of our concern of what this ties to
is why on my exhibit to my testimony, why for the
routes we say that we need to go to 10-digit dialing
even though they are EAS routes and all, and part of
it -- it's a factor of is, for instance, right now for
Clearvater, Clearwater has 300 -- now for all of these
numbers I'm talking about we're only talking about GTE
NXXe. I'm not talking about the NXX for cellular, PCS
or the competitors.

For existing NXXs, Clearwater has 389 NXXs
that they can access on a local 7-digit basis that

includes ECS but it's a 7-digit dialed call.
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So the problem is -- what happened, for
instance that I was just talking about, if you look at
my chart, Zephyrhills has EAS to Dade City. Then you
have Zephyrhills as ECS down to Tampa Central wWell,
what happened is Bell had assigned a code for Dade
City of 289, which is the same us my Beach Park
central office. Well, it can dial today either
direction on a 7-digit basis. The code goes -- the
switch goes, "Wait a minute. Where do I route it? Do
I route it to Dade City or do 1 route it to Tampa?"
And that's what we call as far as a code conflict.
Well, the only way you can get rid of that code
conflict -- especially if you don't catch it before
customers get it assigned, is you've got to then put
in 10-digit dialing on one of those routes, where
today both of those routes are dialed on a 7-digit
basis. So the switch can say, "Ah, when it's
seven-digit I go this way; and if it's 10-digit, I
route it to the other place."

And because of that possibility of code
conflict, it means there are numbers that you cannot
assign in that area because of wherc it has local
calling to, even though -- let's cay we do the split.
And Pinellas has 727 and Hillsborough has 813. There

are certain numbers that I cannot assign in Clearwater
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in the 727 area code depending on how you do your
dialing because it could conflict with one of the
numbers in the local calling areas. And that's what
wva're talking about jinefficient use. Because those
codes are sitting there and nobody can be assignad to
those codes because it's going to conflict.

COMMISSIONER JACOBB: Any idea what the
level of those type conflicts are or would be?

WITEESS MEMARD: If you put in 7-digit
calling across the things it would be tremendous.
That's why our recommendation is if you do a
geographic split, we have to go with 10-digit dialing
across the area codes, even where it's local calling
because there are too many codes that are currently
used on a local basis in these areas.

COMNISSIONER CLARK: But if you do that,
that solves your conflict problem.

WITHNESS MEMARD: It sonlves part of the
conflict problem. You still can have conflict
problems but it makes the possibility for conflicts
much smaller.

COMMISSIOMER DEABOMN: The exhaust perjocd you
gave us for the various options, was that assuming it
would be mandatory l0-digit dialing --

VITHESS MEMARD: Across the area code.
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COMMISSIONER DBASONM: ~-- across the area
code.

NE. BROWM: Chairman Johnson, I thought of
one more question, if you don't mind, kind of a
follow-up.

Q (By X». Brown) Ms. lenard, ln your
deposition you finally gave your opinion of which of
the three geographic splits you liked the best. wWould
you tell the Commissioners which ones.

A The reason 1 think what Ms. Brown is
testifying to -- I'm not for any of them. 1 mean, By
testimony is I'm not for any one. But when you lcok
at my exhibits, I would say my priority of the worse
of the evils is -- that my charts are in order of our
preference if we went to a geographic split. So
Page 3, which is Mr. Gancarz's Option 3, would be our
preferrsd option because we feel it keeps the local
calling patterns the most consistency, so they have
the least amount of 10-digit dialing between true
local calling areas.

MS. BROWN: Thank you,

COMMISSIOMER DEASON: Let me follow up on
that question. Option ) shows a four- to six-year
sxhaustion period for Hillshorough and East Pasco; is

that correct?
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WITMESS MEMARD: Let me look back at my
chart with the numbers. (Pause) Yes.

COMMISSIONER DEABOM: And that contrasts
with Option 4 which provides a five- for seven-year
exhaust.

WITWESS MENARD: Yes. The problem on Option
4 is 1 have 10-digit dialing for local calls within
Tampa. Because you are splitting Pasco off to
Pinellas and a good portion of Pasco County is part of
the Tampa exchange, sc you're talking about 10 digit
local calls. And since the whole reason why wve're
having these hearings is people didn't want 10 digit
local calls, that's why I didn't think this was a very
viable option.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: It's a much spaller
group in comparison. People calling from Pasco to
Hillsborough is much smaller than the people in
Hillshorough that are not going to be having 10 digits
because they don't have an overlay.

WITNESS MBMARD: Under Option 3 there's less
10 digit local calling needed than Option 4.
COMMISSIONER DEABON: That's because so much

of --
WITWESS MEMARD: Pasco is a tually part of

the Tamr+ local calling area.
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COMMISSIONER CLARK: Let me ask you a
qgquestion. From the standpoint of -- you indicate you
don't favor an overlay.

EITNRSS MEMARD: Don't favor an overlay or
don't favor a geographic split?

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Geographic split.

WITHRSS MENARD: Okay.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'm sorry. How
persuaded are you by -- would you be persuaded by
customers who would rather have the geographic split
even if it was short-lived? [ mean, I think there's
baen a lot of testimony explaining why they don't want
it. And quite frankly, the demographics of this area
I find somewhat persuasive.

WITMRESS MEMARD: I think part of my answer
on that would be what we went through when we did the
survey. I mean, when we did the surveys there was no
question, the initial reaction of people, they don't
want any change. And I fully underscand that. And so
there was definitely a subset of the people that at
rirst didn't 1ike the overlay, or were neutral; really
didn't know and all. So one of the things we did as
part of the surveys waes ask the customer, "Okay, if
you did it now, and if you knew that in three to five

years you vera going to have to do it again," and went
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through the scenario, a large percentage of the people
changed their mind and said they'd rather go ahead and
do the overlay now and be done with it.

So we had looked upon that that was going to
be part of cur job as far as implementing the plan,
was to go through the process and go through the
explanation to the customer so they underatand, yes,
this means making change now, but in the long term you
have a lot less change. Because we go through the
change one time. You're on 10-digit dialing. We
never have to change your dialing patterns again. You
are not changing your numbers. You do not have to
change your stationery. We don't have to reprogram
the cellular phones, and we get through this change.
And it's later -- I mean, even under an overlay, we're
talking six to eight years we're probably going to
need another area code, and I think that'~ optimistic
that it will take that long -- then we just put
another overlay area code. There's nothing new for
the custoners to understand.

So what it's told me is we have not done a
good enough job in trying to get our story out for the
customers to understand that I don't have a magic
solution out there that's going to turn off needing

more numbers. And that's why we strongly feel that
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the overlay is better because we're going to go
through all of this grief and then they are going to
go through it again, and I don't think it's to the
customer's best irterest in the long term.

COMMISSAIONER CLARK: Let me ask my question
a little differently.

WITHRSS NEMARD: Okay.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: You're assuming that
your customers would agree with you if they understood
all of the facts as you do.

VITEESS MEMARD: Well, I°'m also doling that
based on looking at the call volumes ot how much
calling goes on across the Bay. Some of the customers
that have testified are people that don't want to call
across the Bay.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: I understand that. 1
just want to say -- I want to ask the guestion.

WITHESS NEMARD: Sure.

COMMISSIONBA CLARK: If a mijority of the
customars, 80% say, "We understand all of that but we
still want a geographic split," what would GTE's
position ba? If the majority ot their customers truly
want this split, understanding all of the parameters

you put on it.

WITHNESS MEMARD: If that there were the type
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percent, then we might have changed our position.
Based on our surveys we did, it was overwvhelmingly the
other way.

CONMIBSIONER CLARK: Okay.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: let me ask a follow-up
question. You indicated that part of your reasoning
was that Hillsborough would have tc have another
relief within a short period of time, and that it
might as well -~ we might as well go ahead and do the
overlay since they were going to have to have an
overlay eventually, in your opinion: is that correct?

WITHESS MEMARD: Well, it was not as much
that -- that was part of it. It was more. Any split
I did was going to require a lot of 10-digit dialing.
So if the objection to the overlay is 10-digit
dialing, I'm going to be doing 10-digit dialing
anyway. So our rationale was it's easier --
education-wise it's easier to tell the customer all
your 7-digit routes become 10-digit rovtes, and to
tell them, "Okay, you're in Pinellas so that means
that this route is going to be 10 digits, this route
is going to be seven digits, this route" -- you know,
1 mean, we're going to have -- in any split we do, is
going to be, I tell the customers -- some of them you

do ssven, some you do ten.
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COMMISSIONER DEABON: What happens if
there's a split and a customer dials a number on a
7-digit basis that needs to be 10 digits? What type
of intercept or what happens to the system?

UITMESS MEMARD: Short term, he'll get a
message. Later that number is going to end up being
reassigned in the other area code, s0 he won't get
vhere ha wants to go.

COMMISSIONER DEASOM: He won't be calling a
party he's not wishing to call. The call will just
not ba completed if he dials it on a 7-digit basis: is
that correct?

WITNESS MEMARD: Yeah. He'll just get
message saying -- short term he gets a message saying
you've got to dial -- I'm trying to remember now how
the recordings work when you do this.

There is a pericd where they get a recording
letting them know. Because at some point, because we
would actually be reassigning those numbers, we can't
keep thoae intercept messages in, 5o then he would

probably just get a vacant recording.

COMMISSIONER DEABON: The call would not be

complated.

WITNESS MEMARD: The call would not be

completad.
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COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Wouldn't he eventually
get the number that was reassigned?

FITHESS MEMARD: Eventually he'd get some
different customer.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: But I thought that was
your code --

COMNISSIONER DEASON: Not on a 7-digit
basis.

WITNESS MEMARD: Sure. Because we're going
to reuse the codes. That's the whole purpose of doing
a split, is to get where the codes that are currently
aren't used in Hillsborough I can now use in -- you
know, I mean ~-- you get new codes to use, but they are
codes that are already in existence on the other side.

COMMISSIONER DEASOM: But you use those
codes last when you have a particular conflict, if you
expand.

YITHESS MEMARD: Well, if we were continuing
being the administrator, yes, that's what we would do.
I don't know if that's what Lockheed is going to do.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: And Lockheed is going
to do it becauss it will be implementing the long-term
number portability.

WITHNESS MEMARD: No. Lockheed is going to

do it because, as part of the FCC's plan, they are
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moving ths number administration from Bellcore and the
local sxchange companies to Lockheed. And so Lockheed
will be assigning all telephone numbers, all NPAs and
NXXs.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, the worst case
scenario, though, if that happens, is the customer
calls on a 7-digit basis it must be a local call.

He's going to call and the party that he wishes to
speak with is not the party answering the phone, then
he'll know from then on if he wants to call the party
he thought he was calling, he's going to have to dial
on a 10-digit baais.

WITHESS MEMARD: I would presume that's
correct, yes. I think.

COMMISBIONER DEASOM: It's not going to be a
toll call involved.

WITNESS MBMARD: Not on a 7-digit type
basis.

CHAIRMAM JONMBOM: Ary other questions?

Redirect?

MS. CASWEBLL: I do have a few questions.

AEDIRECT EBIAMINATION

BY MNS. CASWELL:

Q Ms. Menard, could you estimate how many

customers testified today against the ove.lay?
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A I did not keep a tally today.

Q Would you say more than 20, less than 207

A Around 20.

Q And were many of those same customers the
same people who testified in the Pinellas and
Hillsborough worksehops on this issue as well?

3 Yes.

Q Would you say that that group of people is
necessarily representative of the entire customer
segment in the B81) area code?

No, I do not think they are.

Q How many customers are we talking about?

A ¥We're talking about 2 million customers in
the 813 area code.

Q Can you look round at the audience in back
of me for a moment. Do you see anybody in that
audience that testified against the overlay this
morning?

Y Not that I recognize.

Q And do you recall what was the most
consistent complaint about the overlay this morning?

A I think it was the use of 10-digit -- the
fact that ve have 10-digit dialed calls.

Q Do you think those customers -- do you think

all of customers realize that the geographic split
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won't remedy the 10-digit dialing problem?

A I do not know that the customers fully
understand how much 10-digit dialing will be required
uhder a split.

Q If they had stayed for you testimony and,
perhaps, for Mr. Gancarz's testimony, do you think
they might know a little bit rore about the plan?

A They might have, yes.

MR. BDECK: I'm going to object. You know,
the witness is speculating what somebody else may or
may not know. She just doesn't know what other peopla
may not know, and I think this is beyond her
capability of testifying. She's not qualified.

MB. CASWELL: I'll drop this line of
questioning.

COMNMISSIONER GARCIA: Do you think they
would have been conscious through the entire
testimony? (Laughter)

WITNESS MEMARD: That's a good question.

MS. CASWELL: I have problems with that
nysslf. (Laughter)

Q (Py Ms. Caswell) Ms. Menard, in your
experience, do customers favor greater delays in their

calls going through?

Not to the best of my knowledge.
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Q And to your knowledge, do customers favor
7-digit dialing rather than a greater number of digits
when ECS was implemented?

Yen.

Q Have we had a lot of customer requests to

add more digits to the ECS pumbers?

A No.
Q Have we had any requests at all?
A Mr. Campbell is the only one I'm aware of.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Let me ask you,
Ms. Menard, because it reminds me of a question --
don't you pretty much have those NXXs distributed
sarly on, even before they've actually been given to
someone of where they are going to end up, which
office they are going to end up in?

WITNESS MEMARD: Mr. Gancarz can talk more
specifically about that, being the code administrator.

My understanding of what the normal thing is
going to be like -- let's talk about a new code that
comes up. The carrier requested, we have a certain
time frame of which Mr. Gancarz then has to honor
their request and tell them vhether they can have that
code or not. You know, depending on what the
situation is. Like right now we're in a jeopardy

condition, so somebody can't automatically get one.
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COMMISSIONER GARCIA: We're not discussing
the area code.

WITMESS MENARD: I understand. But I'm
talking about, because we are in a jeopardy situation,
it impacts the carrier's capability to get codes.

The number gets assigned under the current
guidelines; because we're in a jeopardy condition, the
carriers have got to put the number in service within
six months. Under normal circumstances, if we were
not in a jeopardy -- the carrier has 12 months of
vhich to put a number in service.

CONMMISSIOMNER GARCIA: All right. So that --
let's stop right there. That gives you, though, the
ability that when you publish your directory you, in
essence -- this is not a typical situation, but next
year's front page of your phone book where you have
which calls are ECS and not ECS, it would never be
late because you give the numbers almost to year out,

WITNESS MEMARD: Wecll, but under normal
circumstances, we don't get the numbers. Like let's
talk abou: for GTE Florida's use.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Okay.

WITHNESS MEMARD: ! don't get the numbers a
year ahead of when I need them. We get them when we

need them. And so what does happen is if the
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directory is an October directory -- November I'm
asking for new numbers. The directory is out. So
those NNXs would not be there. The thing is going to
be, though, most of the customers are being assigned
in the old NNXs. Sc proportionally there probably
aren’'t that many calls that are gocing to the new NNXs
before a new directory would b+ published, you know,
because by definition we try to assign from the old
codes first. But, theoretically, there is no way I
can fully solve the problen.

And I think normally, the normal quidelines
the directory company uses, is they only put numbers
that are in and working when they do those maps,
bacause you don't want to mislead the public and think
there's a NNX there that's not there.

COMMIBSIONER GARCIA: Yeah, but I don't
think anybody is going to call an NXX --

WITNESS MEMARD: I{ they don't have anybody.
I would agrea. But I don't know that that has always
bsen our mode of cperandi. Probably would be -- a
batter way to do it is to make sure we have all future
assigned ones. But a timing thing is there still
would be, I think, the high probability that there
would bs mome codes assigned that we would not know at

the time. Because the directory closiry is like four
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to five months, at least, before the actual
publication date.
CHAIRMAN JOHMBON: Ms. Caswell.

Q (By Ma. Caswell) A couple more. Do you
believe that rate center consolidation is potentially
a solution to the issues in this particular docket?

} No. Because it's a timing issue. We're
running out of numbers this year. There's nothing we
could do in time.

Q Would rate center consolidation be an
industry-wide solution in your opinion?

F ) Yes. And that's why I think the Staff asked
me the question that -- you know, the staff does have
a ongoing -- in the long-term number portablility
docket we're lookxing at those type issues.

Q Okay. I'd like you to look back at what has
besn labeled as potential croes examination Exhibit 5
that Mr. Beck passed out earlier. Look at Option 2,
which is the overlay. He had a series of gquestions in
which he asked you to characterize particular
statements here as negative or positive. 1I'd like you
to look at Item No. 2 under Option 2. And it says,
"All local and extended toll service calls would
require dialing 10 digits." Based on the consumer

testimony this morning, would you say th¢- consumers
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would regard that as a negative or a positive
characteristic?

A As a negative.

Q And will you look at No. 5 now? It says,
“No changes in your free or extended calling service
area."” Do you think that that's a negative or a
positive characteristic?

A I would hope it would be a positive. When
you look at it in conjunction you're going to lo-digit
dialing, and I don't know if it would be a negative or
positive.

Q 8o which one did GTE place first, the
clearly negative characteristic or the potentially
positive characteristic in this survey?

A I think wve put a lot of the negatives first
vhen we said No. 2 and No. 3.

iS. CASWELL: Thank you. That's all I have.
CEAIRMAM JOHNS8ON: Exhibits?
MB. CASWELL: Yeah. ] would move
Exhibit No. 3 which was the attachment to Ms. Menard's
direct testimony.
CEAIRMAN JOEMBON: Show that admitted

without objection. Okay.

(Exhibit 3 received in evidence.)

MR. BECE: Move 4, 5 and 6.
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NS. CASWELL: 1 do have an objection to
Exhibit No. 5.

CHAIRMAN JOHMBON: We'll attend to them one
at a tipe. Show 4 as 6 admitted without okjection.

(Exhibits 4 and 6 received in evidence.)

CHAIRMAN JOENBON: &~ is the excerpts from
the Survey Questionnaire.

N5. CASWERLL: My objection is conditional,
and I don't know if this is the place we want to fight
about the introduction of the Survey in its entirety.
But I would object with even more now that Mr. Beck
has introduced portions of the Survey Questionnaire in
his Exhibit 5, and ask the Commission once again to
submit the entire Survey, as Mr. Latvala requested
this morning. And I believe the entire Survey is
actually three surveys and some supporting material,
all of which was produced to Mr. Beck through
discovery, and which I've handed out to Staff and, 1
believe, Chairman Johnson also has a copy.

So if all of that Survey comes in, I would
object to the introduction of Exhibit No. 5.

CEAIRMAN JOHNBOMN: Mr. Beck.

MR. BECK: Chalrman Johnson, the reason 1
used cross examination Exhibit 5 is because of your

sarlier rulings did allowed in the information about
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the survey. If Ms. Menard is competent to sponsor the
surveys, then I suppose I won't have an objection.
Howsver, there's been no showing that she is competent
to support the three volumes of surveys. S$So there's
no besis for GTE to offer their survey if, in fact,
that's what they're doing at this point.

MS. CASWELL: Then I wo.ld say that there's
no basis for you to be offering this croass examination
exhibit; no basis for your cross examination of

Mas. Menard.

MR. BECK: Well, certainly it shows that
she's not competent to answer the guestions about the
Survey.

MS. CASWELL: Well, I think the agreement
this morning was that the material this morning would
come in, and we would offer Ms. Menard -- we would
offer her testimony, the Commission could give it
whatever weight it wanted to give the testimony, and
we would also keep the consumer testimony in about the
survays, and there's a substantial amount of the
testimony given in the public workshops about those
surveys.

CEAIRMAM JOEMBON: Ms. Caswell, let me ask
you one question. Are you going to offer the complete

volume of information, the three volumes that contain
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the Survey?

MS. CAPWELL: Yes. [ would plan to do that
based on the remarks this morning and the fact that
this comes in -- I want that to come in as well.

CEAIRMAN JOHMBON: Okay. At what time? Are
you offering them now?

MS. CAPWELL: Yeah, I'm offering them now.
I'm offering them now. If those are accepted, my
objection to this portion of the survey will go away
because then the entire survey will become part of the
record. And I don't have the evidentiary code here
with me, unfortunately. But I think the rule is that
if a portion of document comes in, in all fairness the
entire document should come in if there's an objection
to it,

CEAIRMAM JOHNBOM: Staff?

MB. PROWNM: Staff doesn't really have a dog
in this fight. For the Commission's benefit, it seems
to us that the more information you have about the
survey the better off you will be, and you can take
it, give it the weight that i{t's duc. You're not
usually terribly strict about sponsorship of documents
and informatjon. I don't mean tou indicate that you
act inappropriately, but to be in an administrative

hearing, the idea is to get as much information as you
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can so you'll have a full record. And you are more
flexible sometimes than a court would be in admitting
evidence. And I suggest that you go ahead and admit
the whole Survey, then you'll have it and you can make
your own judgment on it.

CEAIRMAM JOENSOM: And we're going to have
Ms. Menard sponsor --

MS. CASWELL: She will sponsor the exhibit.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSOM: 1'}]1 tell you what,
we'll go ahead and have that marked, and then I'll
allow the objections to be heard, make a ruling and
then the other one may be relevant or it may not be
relavant. And I do have the text here, 80 we'll mark
that is Exhibit 10.

MB. CABWELL: I'm sorry. I'm not sure I
understand the process. We're going to argue about it
later?

CEAIRMAM JOHNSON: No, we're going to argue
about now. I was marking it as Exhibit 10.

MS. DROWN: Could Staff move Exhibit 7
Ms. Menard's deposition, first?

CEATRMAM JONMBON: Okay. We'll go ahead and
show 7 admitted without objection, and 8 and 9 were
both late-filed?

MS. BROWN: Yes, ma'am.
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(Exhibits 7 received in evidence.)

CHEAIRMAN JONMBOM: Now, 10 has been
identified, and it is the survey, the complete survey.

Now, Mr. Beck.

(Exhibit 10 marked for identification.)

MR. DRCR: Briefly, Chairman Johnson, I
asked Ms. Msnard what her backgrorad was in market
research, and to the best of my recollection, she
didn't have much other than having reviewed some
research that had been done by others. I believe she
said had no background in survey design or the wording
of questions used in surveys. I don't believe she is
competent to sponsor that exhibit.

CHEATRMAN JONMBOM: Okay. Ms. Caswell.

MS. CASWELL: I think Mr. Beck made whatever
points he wanted to make through cross examination of
Ms. Menard using this very exhibit, and since that is
going to be in the record, and it involves this
exhibit and this exhibit is only a portion of --

CHEAIRMAN JONMBON: We haven't determined
that the other one was going to be in yet.

MS. CANWELL: Well, that's kind of what my
objection is conditioned upon. 1 don't care if this
comas in if the other exhibit comes in, because then

ve will have the sntire document. And tiat is
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customarily, as I understand it, what happens under
the evidentiary rules, that if a portion of a document
comes in, the entire document must come in out of
fairness to the opposing party. And I would add that
if the survey doesn’'t come in, there was a substantial
amount of testimony this morning about the survey's
design. And I'm going to have to object, just to
preserve my points on appeal, to all of ihat testimony
about the survey's design if the Survey itself does
not coma in. Because that's a technically appealable
point.

CEAIRMAN JOHEMBON: I'm going to admit the
Exhibit 10, and I don't know if there's a need for --
wall, I guess we could keep 5 if you just want that
excerpt for purposes of clarification, so I'll admit
both % and 10,

(Exhibits 5 and 10 received in evidence.)

CEAIRMAN JOHMNBOM: Any other matters for
this witness?

Thank you, Ms. Menard. You're excused.

{Withess Menard excused.)

MS. CASWBLL: GTE calis Skip Gancarz.
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SERGIN GAMCARZ
wvas called as a witness on behalf of GTE Florida
Incorporated and, having been duly sworn, testified a
follows:
DIRECT BXIANINATION
BY MS. CASWEBLL:

Q Can you please state your name and business
address for the record?

A My name Sergin Gancarz. I work for GTE
Florida, and I work at 201 North Franklin Street in
Tampa.

Q And in what capacity are you employed with
GTE Florida?

A At the present time I am the 813 NPA NNX
administrator and the 941 administrator.

Q Did you file direct testimony in this
procesding?

} 1 Yes, I did.

Q And did that testimony include as an

attachment Exhibit SJG-1, which consisted of four

pages?
A Yes, 1t did.
Q Do you have any changes to your direct

testimony or to the exhibit?

) No, I don't.
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Q 5o that if I were to ask you those sanme
gquestions today would your answers remain the same?
A Yas.

MS. CASWELL: Madam Chairman, I'd like to
ask at this time that Mr. Gancarz's testimony be
inserted into the record as though read.

CEAIRMAN JOHMBON: It will be so inserted.

MS. CABWELL: And I'm not sure if this is
the place to do it, but I'd like to request an exhibit
numbar for S5JG-1.

CRAIRNAM JOHMSOM: It will be identified as

Exhibit 11.

(Exhibit 11 marked for identification.)
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GTE FLORIDA INCORPORATED
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF SERGIN J. GANCARZ
DOCKET NO. 580048-TL

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
My name is Sergin J Gancarz My business address is 201 North

Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida

BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND IN WHAT CAPACITY?
| am employed by GTE Flornda as an Administrator in Inventory

Management.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND,
WORK EXPERIENCE, AND CURRENT RESPONSIBILITIES

| began work with GTE Florida in November 1970 as an Equipment
Technician. | repaired and maintained a variely of step-by-step and
analog switching systems. In 1973, | was promoted to the position of
Instructor in the GTE Training Department where | instructed GTE
Florida employees in analog and digitai switching systems and related
matters. In August 1589, | assumed the position of NPA NXX
administrator in Network Planming This entailled processing raquests
for NXX codes within the Flonda 813 and 941 NPA's in accordance with
standards and procedures set up by the inlernational Numbering

Committee under control of BELLCORE in Livingston, New Jersey
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WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?
The purpose of my testimony 15 to axplain the problem of the 813 area
code exhaust and to provide a rehef option in accordance with the

consensus reached by the Telecommunications Industry on November

17, 1997.

UNDER WHAT GOVERNANCE ARE AREA CODES ADMINISTERED?
The North Amernican Numberning Plan (NANP) governs the assignment
and use of telephone numbers in North Amenca The NANP standards
comport with the interational numbering standards established by the
international Telephone and Telegraph Consultative Committee
These standards provide the accepted format for telephone numbers--a
three digit Numbering Plan Area (NPA). a three digit central office code

(NXX) and a four digit station number

The NANP is currently administered by BELLCORE However, as the
predominant local exchange service provider in the West Central
Florida araa, GTE Florida 1s obhged o act as the admurustrator for the
assignment of NXX codes within the 813 NPA and to monitor code
usage. in that capacity, GTE Florida has determined that the 813 area

code will exhaust in the 4th Quaner of this year

THE 813 NPA WAS SPLIT TWO YEARS AGO IN MARCH, 19988.

WHY IS ANOTHER SPLIT NECESSARY SO SOON?
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The 813 NPA was spiit into the 813 and 941 NPA's in March of 1996
At tha! time it was projected tha! the 813 area code would last unti
2002. The accelerated rate of exhaust of the 813 area code 15
attributed to the hugher than projected introduction of new services,
cellular, paging, internet, and fax machines, atong with the introduction

of competition for local services

HOW IS AN EXHAUST DETERMINT=D?

The NPA is considaered to be in need of rehef when the 784 NXX codes
are nearing exnaust GTE Flonda. as central office code administrator
for the 813 NPA, contnuously monitors the NXX code wtilization and
assignment In the course of these duties, the number of assigned

codes is always known

Additionally, GTE Flonda tracks the rate of code assignment requests
With these two dala elements total assigned codes and rate of
requests, a determination can be made of the forecasted exhaust of all

codes and thus the exhaust of the NPA code

WHAT IS THE CURRENT STATUS OF THE 3913 AREA CODE?
The 813 NPA today encompasses Pinellas County, Hilisborough
County and southern Pasco County in West Central Florida Of the

possible 784 codes, 135 NXX codes remain to be assigned
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ONCE THE FORECASTED 813 NPA EXHAUST WAS DETERMINED,
WHAT STEPS DID GTE FLORIDA TAKE TO FORM RELIEF PLANS?
Upan identifying the exhaust of the 813 NPA. GTE Florida reviewed the
possible options to provide relief This included three geographic spiit

options and an overiay.

GTE Florida notified all known code requestors and potential code
requestors doing business in the 813 area code, the Public Service
Commission, and the North Amernican Numbering Pian Administration
of an industry meeting The meeting was held on September 30, 1997
to present the relevant .nformation to the parties and to reach a

consensus on a relief pian

WHAT ARE THE AVAILABLE METHODS FOR RELIEF OF AN NPA
EXHAUST?

As defined in the Industry Carriers Compatibiity Forum in theirr Code
Relief Plarnning and Notfication Guidelines, the primary alternatives for

NPA relief are a geographic splt or an overlay

WILL YOU BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THESE ALTERNATIVES?

The NPA geographic spht method divides the exhausting NPA into
geographic areas This method leaves the exising NPA to serve the
area with the highest NXX usage, thus minimizing number changes,

and assigns the new NPA to the remaining area
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The overlay method occurs when more than one NPA serves the same
geagraphical area In this situation code relief is provided by opening
a new NPA within the same geographic area as the existing NPA
Numbers from the new NPA are assigned to growth on a camrier-neutral
basis. While number changes for existing customers are eliminated.
changes to customer dialing patterns will occur This method makes 10

digit local calls withun the NPA mandatory

WHAT WERE THE RESULTS OF THE SEPTEMBER 0, 1997
INDUSTRY MEETING CONCERNING THE METHOD FOR 813 NPA
RELIEF?

The September industry meeting was reconvened on November 17,
1997. At this meeting it was agreed that the overlay relief method was
the best choice for implementation This was a unanimous decision of
the telecommurication industry representatives Three spht options
ptus the overlay were presented but in any split option varied dialing

plans resulted.

Option 1 was the overiay relief plan

Option 2 Split Pinellas County and Hillsborough/Pasco
Option 3 Spiit Pinellas/Pasco and Hillsborough/Pasco
Option 4 Split Hilisborough and Pinellas/Pasco

See Exhibit No. SJG-1

No further relief options were preseinted by the industry
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WHAT DECISION DID THE INDUSTRY REACH UPON

CONSIDERATION OF THESE OPTIONS?

The industry reached unarimous consensus on using the overay

option because:

- It was the most cost effective for customers, In that number
chanyes would not be required

- it provided the most consistent and least confusing dialing plan

since ten-digit dialing woulr be required for the whole NPA area

WHY DID THE INDUSTRY REJECT THE VARIOUS GEOGRAPHIC

SPLIT OPTIONS?

The Industry rejected all spht options because

- A large number of customers would be required to change their
telephone numbers and incur the associated cost

- No definable boundary could be drawn that did not involve

various ten- and seven-digit dialing plans

EVEN THOUGH NO EXISTING TELEPHONE NUMBERS WILL BE
REQUIRED TO CHANGE WITH THE OVERLAY METHOD, WILL
THERE BE INSTANCES IN WHICH CUSTOMERS HAVE TO ACCEPT
TELEPHONE LINES WITH A DIFFERENT AREA CODE WHEN
ADDING TO THEIR EXISTING HOME OR BUSINESS SERVICE?

it is possible that at some time in the future a customer would be asked
to take a different area code for an additional service restding in the

same building. This is a relatively unhksely possibiity due to the fact
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GTE Fiorida plans to include in number assignment the ability to make
assignments In the same area code as existing services, whenever

possible.

WHEN SHOULD THE NPA RELIEF BE IMPLEMENTED?
The 813 relief option selected by the telecommunicalions industry
should be implemented as soon as possible, with a cut-off date of

October 4, 1998.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.
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Q (By Ns. Caswell) Mr. Gancarz, can you
please give us a brief summary of your testimony?

Yes. In my role as the NPA NNX
administrator, the exhaust of the 813 is very critical
at this time. We are now down to 125 available NNX
codes in this area. We've heard various testimony
about numbaers and the avallability of them, but I'm
under the constraints of when I run out of the NNX
codes I don't have any more numbers. And last year we
used 120 of them. So with 125 left there's not room
for much more argument. We need to do scmething and
we need to do it quick.

I don't think there's any viable solutions
being touted in the industry right now that we can
walt for. The 813 is going to exhaust in 1998. We
need to get the planning portion of this started as
soon as possible, and get -- because the
telecommunications industry and everybody needs time
to work this out. The change must be done as soon as
wve can get it done. Whether it is a split or an
overlay, we must get the lmplementation process going

now.

As has been discussed in this, the
telecommunications industry as a whole voted for the

overlay. It was my responsibility as the NNX

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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administrator to bring the industry together, present
various plans to them, take their opinions, and make a
decision on what we were going to do by what they told
me.

We invited every codeholder and possible
people that had interest in the process to all of
these industry meetings. Only 12 of them showed up at
the meetings, but every one of them voted for the
overlay. And by every one, GTE Florida only had one
vote. We may be getting the brunt of this, but we
only had the one vote. The rest of them only had one
vote, but it was unanimous for an overlay after all of
the ramifications were explained. Thank you.

MS. CASWELL: Mr. Gancarz is avajlable for
cross examination.

CEAIRMAN JORMSOM: MCI?

MR, PDOND: MCI has no Cross.

CEAIRMAM JOEMBON: ATAT?

MS8. RULEB: No Cross.

CEAIRMAM JORMSOM: Mr. Beck?

MR. BECK: Thank you, Chairman Johnson.
CROSS EXAMINATION

BY NR. BECK:

Q Mr. Gancarz, good afternoon.

A Good aftaearnoon.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q Could you turn to Page 3 of your teat imony
whers you discussed the process that you used to
determine an exhaust of area codes?

e And you briefly describe it starting at
Line 8, the answers underneath the question. Lat me
take you through that a little kit if I could.
Basically you say that the number of assignad codes {8
alwvays known; is that right?

A Right.

Q That's the number of NNXs which -- NXX is
the first three digits of a 7-digit telephone number,
is it not?

A It's the second three digits of your
10-digit telephone number.

Q The same thing. So you know hovw many are
actually assigned at any given point in time; is that
right?

A Yes,

Q Okay. Then starting at Line 15 you say that
you also know the rate of code assignments; is that
right?

} Yas.

Q Okay. And you use those two pieces of

information to extrapolate into the future vhat the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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use of NXX codes will be; is that right?

b Correct. Yss.

Q Okay. Now, when you determine the rate of
code assignments, how do you do that?

) Using the last year's number of codes that
were used.

Q Did you pick two points in time?

A Yes.

Q Okay. What were the two points in time that
you used for the forecast that's been discussed here?

A The original forecast would have been from
the first day of '96 to the last day of '96. And
lately I had to use 1-1-97 to the end of '97 for
better results.

Q But at any time you make a forecast you only
use those two points to cover a one-year period; is
that right?

Correct.

Q And you use straight-line cxtrapolation then
to forecast the use of those codes?

A Basically, yes.

Q We've had a number of people testily about
the expected exhaust dates of various geographic split
alternatives, as well as the overlay alternative. You

were here wvhen that was discussed, were you not?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIGCN
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Yes, I was.
Q Are those forecasted exhaust dates
determined the same -- using the same methodology?

A Basically, yes.

Q So, for example, they discussed earlier an
option 3, that the expected exhaust date for
Millsborough would be four to six years. I believe.
Was that forecasted using two points of time and then
a straight-«line extrapolation of usage?

A Yes.

Q For that four to six years for Hillsborough,
what were the two points that were used to determine
the rate of use?

b ) All of my forecast calculations are based on
the COCUS report that is filed every year with
Bellcore. And that calculation calls for the first
day of the yesar to the last day of the year. So that
is what ve were using with our forecast, was the first
day to the last day.

Q What was the year that you used’

A Originally it was 199é.

Q okay. Specifically for the four to six

A This was 1997,

a That was using, what, the beginning -- the

"LORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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first day and last day of 19972

correct.

Q Oxay. And by straight-line extrapolation,
that's kind of -- that's essentially if you have graph
paper, you took two pocints, connected them and then
just put a straight line on there?

Yes.

Q Doean't that assume that there will be no
measures taken to conserve numbers in the future?

A I don't know that it takes into
consideration that there's not going to be any
conservation. I think what it locks at is the usage
that is in place, and rather than trying to assume
that sumething will come in that will save Yyou, it is

better to look at what if something don't come in to

save you.
Q Okay. But if you know, doesn’'t it
implicitly assume that nothing will change as -- the

conditions that existed during that one-year period
will stay constant into the future?

A No. I built in a growth factor rather than
taking some avay.

Q What do you mean by that?

3 For instance, the forecast that you are

talking about based on my 1997 data which used 120 NXX
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codes in that period of time, I added a total growth
factor of 10%, which might be fair, might be less than
optimistic, but it seemed like it was just about equal
between cellulars, pagers and what we were growing,
and competition I had to exclude for the time being.
And I just figured a 10% growth above the 120 which
gave me 132 codes for the next year.

I also included i, there the fact that we
would probably gain two new competitors in that time,
sach of them taking four codes, which came out to be
140 codes per year.

e So your forecast, then, is based on using
140 NXX codes every year?

A Right. That seemed to be somewhat of an
average for the next five or six years, so I used 140
for all of them.

Q And during the most recent 12-month period
you used 1207

A Correct.

[v] You provided us some work papers, did you
not, in response to document reguests?

Surae.

MR. BECK: Let me pass out some of them and

maybe use that te help.

CEAIRMAN JOENSOM: Do you want this marked?

PLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. BECK: Yes, please.

CEAIRMAN JOENMBOM: We'll mark it as
Exhibit 12.

(Exhibit 12 marked for identification.)

Q (By Mr. Beck) Mr. Gancarz, do you have
that exhibit in front of you?

A Yes.

g Could you leaf through it quickly to see if
you recognize that these are work papers of yours?

A Yes, they are.

Q I'd ask you to turn to the first page, which
has a page number 485 at the bottom.

A Yes.

c Is this your forecast for growth in pagers?

A Yes, it was.

Q Okay. Could you briefly describe how you
did that?

A We totalled up the paging codes. [ wanted
to use the same period of time, 1-1-97 until the end
of '97. Two of those codes were put in place in '98,
so I temporarily put them aside and figured we had 62
paging codes and figured 25% growth for pagers.

Q What did you base the 25% growth per pagers
on?

A That was based on the previous year to '97

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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growth ratio. I was basically at 45 or 46 and went to
60, so it was about a 25% growth.

Q 8o at the end of 1997 your 62 NXX codes
assigned to paging; is that right?

A Right.

Q You said yes?

Yes.

Q And then you assumed that there are -- or
your calculations showed that there would be 16
additional NXX codes that would be used during 19987

That's correct.

Q Could you go to the next page, which is
Page No. 497 at the bottom?

A Yas.

Q This shows growth for POTS and DID: is that

A Yes.

Q Okay. And POTS being plain old telephone
service?

A Correct.

] And that's GTE's use of NXX codes?

A That would be us and any competitor that is
deing POTS.
Q Does that include ALECs for alternative

local exchange companies as well?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A The CLECs are included at the bottom of the

page.
[ ] Okay. And you determined that GTE would use

36 additional codes during 19987

A Correct.

Q Correct. And that's a 5% growth for POTS
plus a 3.5% growth for DID: is that .ight?

A Yes.

Q Could you briefly describe what DID is&?

A Those are trunks going to businesses, going
to PBXs, various customer-owned switches.

Q And on the next page you have your growth
for the competitive local exchange companies: is that
right?

A That's true.

Q And you show that there were 3% NXXs
assigned to them at the end of 1997; is that correct?

A Right.

Q And you show 10% growth in that --

A Yes.

Q -= is that right? But then yéu aiso have
eight codes for new providers as well, in addition to
that; is that right?

A Right.

Q How did you determine that?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A Basically, by guess.
Q Is there any historical data that you used?
A No. Because the competition factor is kind
of recent. It hasn't been around that long. There is
not really a basis to guess on, but it is a guess.
M8. RULEB: Commissioners, I need to
interject an aobjection at this point. We're
investigating the basis for these numbers. Depending
on the basis for the numbers of NXXs assigned to the
various carriers, we may consider them to be
confidential. But at this point it's not clear to us
whether these numbers are requested or assigned.
X9. CASWELL: Marsha, I have been told that
they are assigned already and that --
%$. RULB: Then we have no objection.
WITHNESS GANCARS: They are already present
in the LERG.
Q (By Mxr. Beok) There's been no claim by GTE
of confidentiality of any of this material, has there?
No.
Q Let's get back to that.
You have eight codes for new providers that
you use your judgment, basically?
A Yes.

Q why did you multiply that by five?

. LORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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At that time, I figured five providers would
come into this whole area.

Q Five providers, each using eight codes, NXX
codes each year?

Right. Correct.

e Is there anything you haven't told us that
you used as a basis for determining that, other than
just judgment?

A No. It was just judgment.

Q Okay. The next page, which has 611 at the
bottom, shows your growth for cellular and PCS; is
that right?

A Yeas, it does.

Q And this shows that there were 96 codes for
cellular PCS5 at the end of 1997, does it not?

A Yes.

4] And you forecasted 20 additional codes in
19987

Yes.

Was that based on historical data?

Yes, it was.

Okay. Then in addition to that you have
eight codes for new provider times two or additional

16.

A That would be two PCS providers coming into

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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the area.
Q How did you determine that?
A Again, it was by guess.
Q Okay. And why eight codes for the two

providers?

A Figuring they would take one in each rate

center.

Q And that's how you determined the total for
PCS and cellular?

Right.

Q Could you go to the last page, which has the
484 at the bottom.

A Uh-huh.

Q Does this kind of sum up the forecast you
did for usage in 19987

A Yes.

Q Would you agree that -- let me ask this.
Each of the codes you assigned we have been talking
about carriers 10,000 numbers with it, does it not?

b Yes, it does.

] Q Okay. If the industry or if the Commission

goes to either number pooling blocks of 1,000 or less
or rate center consolidation, that would affect your

forecast, would it not?

A I don't see how it can get there that

FLOR1DA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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quickly but if it did, it might, yes.

Q lat me put it this way, it won't aftfect your
forecast for the immediate need of some kind of reljef
right now; is that right?

A That's true.

Q But would it effect the exhaustion date that
had been forecasted for the various geographic split
scenarioa?

A Again, counting on something to save you
from running out usually costs you more than it does
if you look at the worse possible case.

Q One last item, Mr. Gancarz. We asked you to
provide your estimate for the exhaustion if there’s a
three-way split. One section going to Hillsborough,
one area code going to Pinellas, and another going to
a portion of Pasco served by 813 currently: is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q okay. And you sponsored the answer to that
in an interrogatory, did you not?

A Yasm.

Q okay. And could you briefly describe how
you determined your forecasted exhaustion date for
sach of those scenarios?

A Basically, it was taking the number of cocdes

FLORIDA PUBLI{ SERVICE COMMISSION
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in use, in each of the areas, using the forecasted
data for '97 and projecting it onwards.

Q And in your response to the interrogatory
you stated that GTE believes that the North American
Numbering Plan Administration would deem such a
three-vay split infeasible; {s that right?

A It goes basically against the guidelines for
NPA assignment in that ve would be lasting more than
twvo years in Hillsborough County. And the gulidelines,
while they don't target it specifically, say that it's
not recommended that two NPAs be assigned when more
than two years is left in one or the other NPAs.

] Okay.

MR. BBCK: Thank you. That's all I have.

CEAIRMAM JOMMBON: Staff? Oh, I'm BOIrY.
You want this marked Exhibit 13.

MR. BECK: Yes.

CEAIRNAN JOENBON: GTE's Response to
Citizens Interrogatory 1.

(Exhibit 13 marked for identification.)

CRAIREAN JOEMBOM: Staff?

Ng. BROWN: cChalrman Johnson, we would like
to have marked for identification Mr, Gancarz's
February 16th, 1998 deposition transcript and his

deposition and Late-filed Deposition Exhibit Nos. 1

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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through 10. Staff identified it as SJG-2. Also his
errata shest for that depoaition.

CEAIRMAN JONNSONM: We will identify that as
14, and it will be staff Composite $JG-2 and it will
include the errata sheet.

NS. DROWN: Thank you.

(Exhibit 14 marked for idc.atification.}
CROSS EXIANINATION
BY NS. BROWN:

Q Mr. Gancarz, when ve met for your deposition
eight days ago, you said that were 130 codes left in
the 813 area code; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q So we've lost five codes in eight dayr?

A Well, actually, we lost seven, but I got two
back. S0, yes, in affect we lost five.

Q Okay. In your experience in dealing with
other code adminlstrators like yourself, how long has
it been since one of you all has underestimated the
iength of time that an area code will last?

Every time.

Q Every time you have underestimated it?

a Yeos.

Q Haven't you overestimated how long it would

last, so that it actually ran --

. LORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A No, it ran before our forecasted date.

Q Right. And never has it actually lasted
longer than you would have thought?

3 Not that I'm aware of.

Q And in your deposition didn't you tell me
that it was your opinion that the times that you had
estimated for the different options to last were very
conservative?

A I thought so0.

Q And that, in fact, you were afraid they
might exhaust sooner?

A Yes.

Q What is the current exhaust date for the 813
area code?

1-1=-99,

Q  Now, that date, is that the date that begins
from the date ~- 80 the exhaust dates would be from
the -- the exhaust dates for RBOCs would be from the
exhaust of the 813 area code or from the date you made
your projection?

Y Trose are from the date that the options
were dravn up.

Q S0 vhat date exactly is that?

A I1f you're talking about the picture cptions,

those were --

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q The options that were included, for
instance, in your ~-

A Okay. Those were done -- oh, February 18th.

0 All right. Let'’s go back. The picture
options that you've seen here today, Option 1,

Ms. Menard updated that. In your deposition you
estimated that that option would last seven to eight
years. MNs. Menard told the Commission earlier it
would last six to eight years. What date does that
start from?

A That date would start from the date of the
overlay, October 4th, through whatever that date is.

Q Okay. The mandatory date?

A Right.

Q And that would be the same for each?

A That date was compiled figuring we would
gain 784 new codes and that's all we'd have.

L+ ] Okxay. Mr. Beck was asking you a couple of
questions about the formula you used to calculate the
dates. Let me state this in an equation. It is, as I
understand it, and you correct me if I'm wrong, actual
usage, plus 10% growth per year, plus 10% new CLEC
codes, esquals the numbers of codes you will use?

A That's basically true, yes.

Q Do you know how many access lines GTE

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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provides by county for Hillsborough County?

] I cannot tell you the number of access
lines. I don't get into lines. I can tell you how
many ¥NXXs there are per county.

Q Did you -- in your deposition we asked that
wvhen you come to the hearing that you provide an
up~to-date listing of NXXs assigncd to the B13 area
code. Did you bring that with you?

A Yes, I did.

MS. BROWN: Chairman Johnson, I'm afraid we
only have that one copy that Mr. Gancarz brought with
him. Could we have it marked for identification and
then we'll provide a copy to the parties vhen we get
back to a copy machine?

CEAINMAN JOHMBON: Okay. I1'll mark that 15,
and wvhat was the short title? what is the document?
ES. BDROWN: *Up-to-date NXX Code

Assignments.”

CHMATIRMAN JOENBON: "Up-to-date NXX Code
Assignments® will be the short title.

NS. BROWN: Thank you, and we'll make sure

that this gets distributed to everyone.

(Exhibit 15 marked for identification.)
Q {By Ms. Browm) In your deposition you

stated that you reserved 30 NXXs if the overliay is
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

21

24

25

o2

implemented in order to comply with the FCC
requirement that new carriers have access to NXXs in
the 813 area code; is that correct?

A I wouldn't use the term "reserve,* I would
use the term not put out for assignment. I would hold
back at least 30 codes for new competitors into the
813 area.

Q If the Commission implements a geographic
split, could the 30 NXXs be used to extend the
permissive dialing period?

A Yes, they could.

Q And wouldn't that be helpful since we're
going to have, perhaps, a fairly short perminsive
dialing period?

A It would only be helptul if we go to a
split.

Q Sell, let's assume for a minute that we do,
that we go to a split. Won't we be faced with a
situation where we will have a fairly short permissive
dialing period under the guidelines for a geographic
split?

F Under the guidelines for a geographic split,
they like to keep it at about a six-month period. The
last time we did it ip Florida we thought a nine-month

period would be a lot better and had almost a full
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year. We could push the October date out by using
those codes.

MS. BROWNM: That's all I have. Thank you.

CEAIRMAN JOENBON: Exhibits? Starting at
11, GTE's.

MS. CASWELL: I'd like to move Exhibit 11,
attachment to Mr. Gancarz's testi-ony.

CEAIRMAM JOHWSON: Show that admitted
without objection.

(Exhibit 11 received in evidence.)

CEAIRMAN JONMBOM: OFPC?

MR. BECE: Move Exhibits 12 and 13.

CEAIRMAN JOMMBONM: Show those admitted
without objection.

(Exhibits 12 and 1) received in evidence.)

CEAIRMAM JONMBOM: And Staff?

MS. BROWNM: Staff moves Exhibits 14 and 15,

CEAIRNAN JOEMSON: Show those admitted
without objection.

(Exhibits 14 and 15 received in evidence.)

CUNMISSIONER JACOBS: I have one question.
In your deposition, Page 13, there's a guestion you
responded to dealing with the motivating factors for

the rate of exhaustion, and you indicated here that at

the time of your deposition that there was

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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approximately 40% demand from cellular and pagers,
approximately 40% from competition and 20% due to
growth.

WITHNESS GAMCARE: Yes,

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Do those numbers
pretty much --

WITHNESS GANMCARS: They are still fairly
accurate.

COMNISSIONER JACOBS: Competition, as I
understand it, is the idea of assigning numbers to
CLECs and that's separate and apart from the cellular
and pager.

WITWESS GAMCARIZ: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. And it's my
understanding that you've actually assigned that 40%
or is that in reserve?

WITNESS GAMCARXE: That 40% --

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: For competition.

WITNESS GAMCARSZ: That 40% would be 40% of
the codes assigned in the year 1998.

COMMISSIONER JACOBB: Okay. HNow, do you
know if they are in use or not? When you assign them
they don't go right into use, do they?

WITHNESS GANCARE: As Ms. Menard said, the

requester can at this time, because of our situation,

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




-t

Al

-~

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
l8
l9
20
21
22
23
24

25

308

hold on to those codes for six months before they turn
them in to service.

COMMISSIONEBR JACOBS: Okay. Do you have any
experience with a return factor based on your
experience?

WITHESS GANCARZ: I have had two codes
returned in the last two years.

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Thank you.

CEAIRMAM JOENMSOM: Thank you, sir. You're
axcused.

{(Witness Gancarz excused.)

COMMISSIONER JOHMSON: Let me get an
indication from the parties as to how much time the
next two witnesses will take. Kelly Faul? GTE?

MS. CASWERLL: I might have 20 minutes of
her.

COMMISSIONEBR JOHNBON: Okay. And Mr. Smith?

8. CABWBLL: About five minutes.

CEAIRMAN JOHNMBON: Staff”

ME. BDROWN: Five at the most.

CEAIRMAN JORNBON: For both?

NS. BROWN: Yes. Six.

CHAIRMAN JONMSOM: We're trying to make a

declsion hare. I understand that the Commisusioners

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COmMAISSION
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have a panel item tomorrow. Their flight leaves at
6:25. And adding that up, we can finish up about
5:30.

Is that enough time to get to the alrport?

M8. CASWBLL: Do you have to check bags?

COMMISSIONER JOMMSONM: Is that enough time?

MS. CABWELL: If you have co check bags go
to the skycap.

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: I think you have the
most time, Ms. Caswaell.

MS. CABWEBLL: I can be very helpful. I'll
give you a ride to the airport, make sure you get
there. You shouldn’t have a problem. Did you say a
6:25 flight?

CEAIRMAN JOHENBOM: 6:25.

MS. CABWRLL: I don't think there should be
a problen.

CEATRMAN JOENSOM: Okay. Then we'll go
ahead and try to finish up.

We'll call Kelly Faul.

MR. BOMD: MCI calls Kelly Faul.

PLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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KELLY PAUL
wvas called as a witness on behalf of NCI
Telecommunications Corporation and MCI Metro Access
Transmission Services, In¢, and, having been duly
svorn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

Q Could you state your name and address

please?

} My name is Kelly Faul, K-E-L-L-Y, F-A-U-L,
and my address is 0521 Leesburg Pike, Vienna,
Virginia.

Q And by whom are you employed?

} 3 I'm employed by MCI.

Jo7

Q Have you prefiled direct testimony in this
matter?

A Yes, I have.

Q If I was to ask you the same guestions today

that you answered in your prefiled testimony, would
your answers be the same?

; Y Yen, they would.

MR. BOMD: I ask that Ms. Faul's testimony

be inserted into the record as though read.

CEATRMAM JONMBON: It will be so inserted.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MCI TELECOMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
AND MC1 METRO ACCESS TRANSMISSION SERVICES, INC
DIRECT TESTIMONY OF KELLY FAUL
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO 980048-TIL.
JANUARY 30 | 1998

INTRODUCTION
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAMF. AND BUSINESS ADDRESS
My name is Kelly Faul. My business address is 8521 Leesburg Pike,

Vienna, VA, 22182

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL
BACKGROUND.

I am curvently employed by MCl in its l.ocal Numbering Group | am
responsible for representing MCI with respect 10 NPA Relief and vanous
numbering issues and to participate in numerous state area code relief
industry mectings and regulatory proceedings | have been employed by
MCI1 for the past fourteen years  From 1994 ta 1997, | was Tarifl
Manager in the Business Markets Segment’'s Business Analysis
Department, responaible for the federal and siate tanf¥ filings for that
business Segment. From 1986 to 1994 | held vanous positions in MCI's
Legal and Information System Department involving commercial litigstion
and arbitestion. From 1983 to 1986, | worked in MOCT's Litigation Support

Depariment in Washington, D ¢, providing supervisory and
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analytical support to MCI litigation efforts | have a Masters of Business
Administration in Management from Virginia Tech, Falls Church, VA and
8 Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from Wheeling Jesuit

University, Wheeling, West Virginia

MIRPFOSE OF TESTIMONY

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my testimony is to idertify competitive issues related to the
Florida Public Service Commission (“Commission”) proposal for area
code relieve in the 813 are code and discuss dialing patterns associated

with various calling plans

AREA CODE RELIEF ALTERNATAVES AND IMPACTS

WHAT AREA CODE ALTERNATIVES ARE BEING CONSIDERED FOR
THE 813 AREA CODIY

Two alternatives are being considered for number exhaust relief in the 813 area
code. The North Amencan Numbering Plan Administrator (“*Administrator’’)
has recommended to the Commission that an overlay area code be
implemented in the 813 area code  Another aliernative that should be explored

is 8 goographic split of the 813 area code

The overlay method wouild create a new area code that would share the same
peagraphic boundarnies as the current 81 ¥ area code  Customers within this
area code would be assigned one of the two area codes associated within this
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The geographic split method would split the existing 813 area code imo two
distinct geographic arcas with different boundarnies

WHAT TYPES OF IMPACTS SHOULD THE COMMISSION
CONSIDER WHEN DECIDING WHICH ALTERNATIVE IS BEST
FOR THE TAMPA AREA?

In selecting which area code relief alternative is best for the Tampe area,
the Commission should consider end user impacts, the impacts on emerging
local competition, and to what extent, if any, ncgative impacts can be

WHAT ARE THE IMPACTS OF THE SPLIT AND OVERLAY
ALTERNATIVES ON END USERS?

Unfortunately, some end users will suffer some cost and disruplion under
either the split or overlay alternatives, although the degree to which end
users are negatively impacted differs based on whether s split or overlay
alternative is selected.

The end user impacts of an overlay include loss of all 7-digit local dialing
(because the Federal Communications Comnussion {"FCC™) requires
mandatory 10-digit dialing for all local cails as a ~ondition for overlay
implementation), loas of the ability o associate an arca code with a unique
geognphic area code; confusion resulting from different area codes
assigned in the same home, business or neighborhood. cost 1o customers

(throughout the overlay area) that currently use then 7-digit number for
3
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advertising, stationery, etc , for new matenals with their 10-digit number,
and cost to customers (throughout the overiay area) to reprogram or
replace automatic dialing sysiems (e g , home alarm and apartment security
systems, elevator emergency phones, eic ) that are currently programmeed
for 7-digits. Further, safety concerns are created during any period when
such devices are incorrectly programmed

The end user impacts of an area code split include need for customers in a
portion of the existing area code 10 change area codes, some additional 10-
digit disling required for calling between the old and new area codes; and
cost 1o customers in the new area code to change advertising, stationery,

eic., to show the new srca code

WHAT ARE THE IMPACTS OF THE SPLIT AND OVERLAY
ALTERNATIVES ON EMERGING LOCAL EXCHANGE
COMPETITION”

An overlay plan can significantly frusirale entry by competitors into the
local exchange market, and provide the incumbent LEC (“ILEC™), GTE
Florida, with a competitive advaniage, because of the disproportionate
assignment of central office codes {called "NXXs"}in the 813 area code to
the ILEC.

An overlay plan would introduce a new. unfamibar area code into the ares
currently served by the 813 area code  Callers lrom within and outside of

Florida are sccustomed to the ¥13 code, and tecognize it as being the
4
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Tampes area. The new overlaid code, however, would not be familias, and
would thus be less desirable than the existing arca codes  As a result,
customers would be more likely select a carnier that could give them a
mumber in the more desirable area code

Cwrrently, the vast majonty of these more desirable NXXs in the 813 area
code have been assigned to GTE Flonda . so if an vverlay is implemented,
new competitive Local Exchange Companies ("CLEC's™) would be left to
draw NXXs primarily from the new, overlay NPPA  This systems of NXX
“haves” and “have-nots” is extremely amicompetitive, since it
disproportionately affects CLECs just as they are attempling 1o enter the
local exchange market in Tampa

The FCC recognized this disadvantage in s Second Keport and Order and
Memoaranchum Opinion and Order, CC Docket Y0-98, August 8, 1996
(“Local Competition - Numbering Order”)  The FCC noted that
incumbent LECs have an advantage over new entrants when a new code is
about 10 be introduced, because they can warehouse NXXs in the old
NPA. Incumbents also have an advantage when telephone numbers within
NXXs within the existing area code are returned to them as their customers

move or change carmiers ((Jrder a1 1289)

HOW CAN THIS AFFECT EMERGING COMPETITION IN THE
TAMPA LOCAL SERVICE MARKET”

312



10
11
12
13
4
15
16
17
18

19

2

22

pX]

25

This unfair situstion will affect the potential for competition in Tampa in
seversl ways. CLECs wili be unable 10 compete effectively in the growth
market of additional lines for fax machines, modems, and the like This
market is explosive, and 1s a primary conteibutor to the need for NPA relief
at this time. Even if the scheduled number ponability systems allow
customers to switch to a CLEC without Josing their telephone number,
these same customers will be less willing to use a CLEC for a second or
third line, even if the CLEC is less expensive or provides better senvice,
because the CLEC will only he able 10 install additional lines if it uses the
new, less desirable arca code  This disparity between NPAs can also
impact the market for new customers, since new customers may choose a
carrier based on that carrier’s ability 10 assign a number from the more
well-known arca code Further_ it is in this secand line market that CLECs
are most likely 10 achieve some initial success  This is because end users
will be more likely to trial a CLLECs service on a non-essential “second

lim“

DOES A GEOGRAPHIC SPLIT HAVE THIS SAME
DISPROPORTIONATE IMPACT ON (I ECS?

No, a geographic spit affects all carniers equally 1T a geographic split were
selected for the 813 area. all carriers  bath GTE Flonds and new
carmiers—would issue 813 numbers in the remanung 813 area, and all
casmiers would issue numbers with the new area code in the new area

Thus, ali carriers have equal access 10 the same nutnber resource

0
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314
DOES MCI RECOMMEND THAT A GEOGRAPHIC SPLIT OR

OVERLAY OPTION BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE TAMPA AREA?
MCI has consistenily recommended geographic splits for area code relief,
because on balance splits are usually jess disruptive 1o consumers, and they
do not have the amticompetitive impacts on local competition thal are
presest with overlays However, MCI recognizes that this Commission
must consider all the circumstances unique to Tampa to decide which relief
alternative is best at this time

If the Commission chooses an overlay ajternative, though, it is critical that
the Commission take steps to mitigate the anticompetitive impacts of an
overlay, and more efficiently use the limited number resousce so as to

reduce the need for maore disruptive area code relief

WHAT STEPS CAN THE COMMISSION TAKE TO REDUCE THE

ANTICOMPETITIVE IMPACTS OF AN OVERI.AY?

If an overlay altermative is selected for the Tampa arca, MCI urges the

Commission to establish the following four conditions

1) The current schedule for permanent local number porntability (LLNP)
implementation must be maintained

2) Requirement for 10-digit dialing within and beiween all old and
new arca codes (consstent with FOCC order)

3) Roguirement for GTE Flonda 10 analyze and report on the
feasibility of a revenuc-neutral Rate Center Consolidation plan for

the 813 area.
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4) Estsblishment of a workshop or other appropriate process to
consider number conservation mechanisms, such as Rate Center
Consolidation, for the Tampa LNP area

WHY IS GTE FLORIDA'S PROPOSED LLNP IMPLLEMENTATION
PLAN IMPORTANT TO MITIGATE ANTICOMPETITIVE IMPACTS
OF AN OVERLAY?

Although LNP implementation does not solve the competitive dispanty
caused by the disproportionate allocation of NXXs needed for new service
applications, it does facilitate the ability of end users to keep their existing
813 numbers when switching their existing seqvice (0 a new carmier Asa

result, LNP is one of several critical components to matigate the

amicompetitive impacts of an overlay

WHY IS 10-DIGIT DIALING A CRITICAL FACTOR IN MITIGA TING
THE ANTICOMPETITIVE IMPACTS OF AN OVERLAY?

The FCC concluded that local diahing dispanity would occur abaent
mandatory 10-digit dialing. because all existing users would remain in the
old area code and dial 7-digits 10 call others with numbers in that arca
code, while new users with the overlay code would have 10 dial (0-digits to
reach any customers in the old code (local Competition - Numbering
Order, §287) As a result, cusiomers would lind it less attractive 10 switch
carmers because CLECSs would have o assign their customers numbers in

the new overiay area code, which would require those customers to dial
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10-digits, while those customers would only have ta dial 7-digits for most
of their calls if they remained with the incumbent casrier.

HOW WILL RATE CENTER CONSOLIDATION HELP TO MITIGATE
THE ANTICOMPETITIVE IMPACTS OF AN OVERLAY?

Rate Center Consolidation (*RCC”) involves the combining , or collapsing,
of existing incumbent LEC rating arcas inlo fewer rate areas, so that fewer
NXXs are required by a carrier sering a local calling area.

In North America, each central office is assigned a “rate center” for
determining the rating and routing of calls in and out Al the subscribers
to that central office are considered to exist at a single point at the center
of the rate area. Since today all rating and routing is accomplished based
on the NPA-NXX digits of a teicphone number, CLECs are forced to use
unique NXXs for customers in each incumbent rate area in order 1o
preserve incumbent LEC rating and routing  This can lead to an enormous
waste of NXXs, especially as CLECSs are first entering the local market,
because their total customer bases initially will not require so many 10,000

number blocks.

The onginal purposes for establishing numerous rate areas -— older switch
technology and cost variations based on smali differences in call distances
— no longer exist. Rate Center Consolidation in the 813 would sharply
reduce the number of NXXs required by CLECs, and would allow
incumbent LECs to use their NXXs more efliciently Mareover, if an

overiay were implemented, RCC would allow CLECs 10 make greater use
9
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of the relatively few NXXs they manage to acquire in the 813 area, thus
reducing the anticompetitive impacts of overlays

HOW CAN A RCC PLAN BE IMPLEMENTED IN THE 813 AREA?

A change in rate areas is a relatively simplc task from a technical
standpoint, but it would necessarily cause impacts (revenue neutral) on end
user call rating. Therefore, MCI urges the Commission tn direct GTE
Florida 10 work with the industry to d _velop a plan to present to the
Commission within ninety (90) days of an order in this proceeding, which
would describe one or more revenue neutrai plans for consolidating rate
areas in the 813 area, the impact on end user billing, the impact on NXX
demand, and any technical considerations The Commission can then

determine if the long tenn benclits to Flonda vutweigh any negative shon

term impacts.

HOW CAN NUMBER POOLING HELP TO MITIGATE THE
ANTICOMPETITIVE IMPACTS OF AN OVERLAY?

Number pooling can mitigate the anticompentive impact of averlays by
giving CLECs access 1o more numbers in the uld, more desirable ares
code. National industry numbering foruens, such as the Industry
Numbering Committee (“INC™) arc currently considering the development
of s long-tesm number pooling solution, but a full pooling solution (i e,
down 10 the individual line level) may take several years to develop and
implement. In the meantime, carmiers have begun looking at an interim

pooling solution that would use the | NP database to enable the sssignment
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of NXXs in blocks of 1000 numbers, rather than the 10,000 number blucks
required today  This potential solution, sometimes referred to as 1000’
black pooling,” or “NXX-X/LRN pooling.” would assign an NPA-NXX to
a raie area, but allow that NPA-NXX to be shared among local service
providers who are LNP-capable and offer service 10 cusiomers within that
area. So, for example, a single NXX could be used by as many as 10
CLEC: for a given rate area, instead of the 10 NXXs that would be
required without this type of pooling  Thus, 1000's block number pooling
would give CLECs access 10 more numbers in the old, more desirable arcs

code.

Although a long-term number pooling solution may not be available fos
several years, an interim pooling mechamsm such as J000's block number
pooling can be implemented in the near term  Carriers in lllinois and New
York, including Ameritech and NYNEX, have established a poaling
implementation team, and propose to test HXX)'s block number pooling in
this first quarter 1998  Accordingly. M('l urges the Commussion to
establish & workshop or other appropnate process for consideration of a

number pooling mechanism for the Tampa LLNP area

ARE THERE OTHER BENEFITS OF RATE CENTER
CONSOLIDATION AND NUMBER POOLING?

Yes. In addition to mitigating the anticompetitive impacts of an overlay,
Rate Center Consolidation and number pooling will sharply reduce the

overall demand for NXXs  Taking steps now to conserve the finite number
1
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resource will mean that futurc area code relief in the Tampa area can be
postponed, thus protecting Florida consumers from experiencing continued
disruptions from area code relief any muore often than absolutely necessary

DIALING PATTERNS FOR VARIOUS CALL TYPES

WHAT ARE THE VARIOUS DIALING PATTERNS AVAILABLE”
There are genenally three calling paiterns which the industry and consumers
are familiar They are  7-dign dialing, 10-digit dialing, and “1+” or 11-
digit dialing.

CAN YOU PLEASE EXPLAIN FACH AND WHEN THEY ARE
TYPICALLY USED?

Yes. Seven-digit dialing is typically used tor local calling within an area
served by one area code  Ten-dig:t dialing 1s also used for local calling in
sreas where there are two or more area codes serving the same geographic
area or between two area codes which share une local calling area As
stated above, 10-digit dialing would be required by all customers if an
overlay relief plan is established 1+ or [ [-digit dialing is generally
understood to be used for long distance o toll calling

WHAT DIALING PATTERNS DOES MO RECOMMEND FOR
LCOAL CALLING?

MCI brlieves that a 7-digit dialing patiern s appropnate for jocal calls
within & local calling area served by one arca code Where there is an area
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code overlay, 10-digit dialing will be required {Local Competition -
Numbering Order 4 287)

WHAT DIALING PATTERNS DOES MCI RECOMMEND FOR TOLL
CALLING?

“1+" or 11-digit dialing is the industry standard for toll calling and there
should be no change to this Customers are familiar with the * 1+
indicating 8 toll call and there is no reason why this should change due to

wres code relief

WHAT DIALING PATTERNS DOES MCI RECOMMEND FOR EAS
OR ECS CALLING?

Since customer in these 1ypes of catling plans are use to calis within the
EAS or ECS being treated like focal calls the calling pattems for local
should spply

CONCLUSION

WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION TO THE COMMISSION
REGARDING AREA CODE RELIEF FOR THE TAMPA AREA?

MCI1 believes that a geographic split to relieve number exhaust in the
Tampa ares is pro-competitive and pro-consumer and should be the chosen
relief method. MCI recognizes thai the ('onunssion will consider all
relevant end user and competitive impacts I, upon consideration,

howe re1, the Commission decides that area code relief in the 813 area
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shouid be accomplished with an overlay, then the Commission should
include a3 conditions to it"s decision the following four requirements

1)

2)

3)

4)

The current schedule for permanent local number ponability
implementation must be maintained

Requirement for 10-digit dialing within and between all old and
new area codes (consistent with FCC order)

Requirement for GTE Florida to analyze and repon on the
feasibility of a revenue-neutral Rate Center Consolidation pian for
the 813 area.

Establishment of a workshop or other appropniate process to
consider of a number conservation mechanisms. such as RCC, for

the Tampa LNP area.

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?
Yes, it dres.
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Q (FYy Mx. Bond) Could you please summarize
your testimony?

A My testimony that I'm here to speak about
today identifies different competitive and end user
implications relating to the different NPA relief
options that have besen presented.

option 1, which is an ov.rlay, which will
add a new NPA to current geoqraphic boundaries of the
813 area code, has an a few what we consider
shortcomings which would include 10-digit mandatory
dialing for all of the calls within the area code:
excessive advertising and other business costs to
businesses; reprogramming of automatic dialing
systens, security seystems and PBXs, and also that the
incumbent LEC, which is GTE, would have all of the --
vell, most of the 813 NXXs, and that the new entrants
would be left with the new NPA.

The other three options all entall a
geographic split, which is what MCI -- wiich is what
MCI is for. The different splits -- we think that 3
and 4 would probably be a better split because the
balance batwveen the lives of the two NPAs are more
evenly beslanced. I think they both are within a few
years, whereas the firet split has a large discrepancy

between the new area code and the old area cade.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Also, in locking at number -onservation
numbers, wve think a few other things should be looked
at, which we talked about today, specifically rate
center consolidation and number pooling, which we
think may be able to prolong the lives of the NPAs
currently and definitely into the future.

1f the Commission dec’des an overlay is
needed, we would ask that four conditions also be
established with that overlay. One, is to maintain
the current LNP implementation schedule, which right
now is scheduled for May 15th of this year. Require
10-digit dialing; have GTE look at posslble rate
center consolidation. I know there's been talk of It
today that it may or may not be feasible, but we think
it should be looked at in greater detail, and also to
establish either workshops or task forces to study
additional number conservation mechanisms.

MR. DOND: Thank you. The witness is
available for cross examination.

CEAIRMAM JOEMBON: Ms. Caswell?

MS. CASWELL: Yes.

CROSS EXAMINATIONM

BY MB. CASWELL:
Q Good afternoon, Ms. Faul.

I think in your opening statement you

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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indicated that you bellieve that the overlay was
anticompatitive because new entrants would get the new
area code while GTE was left with the existing 813.

What I'd like to ask you is whether MCI holds numbers

already in the 813 area code?

A We do hold some codes.
Q I'm sorry. And do you kncs how many?
A I'm not exactly sure of the number.

Q Would you accept, subject to check, that you
have 160,000 numbers available for assignment in the
813 area code?

A We may. Would you like us to check? If we

do have 16 NXXs, that would be right.

Q And do you know that you have the ability to
request more NXXa up to October of 19987

A Correct.

Q Did you hear Mr. Gancarz's testimony that
the current codeholders wvho voted on this matter were
unanimous in their choice of the overlay?

A Correct.

Q MCI was invited to that meeting where that
vote was taken, was it not?

A We're trying to determine that.

Q Okay. Do you think if MCI were invited it

would have been reascnable to expect you to 7o and

TLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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register your objections at that time, if you had any
objections to the overlay?

A It would have been reasonable.

Q You're recommending 10-digit dialing for all
calls in this proceeding regardless of the split or
overlay; ls that right?

A No, only for the overlay.

g Oonly for the overlay. Okay.

Let's go through the conditions you
recommend to the Commission. First is that the
current schedule for permanent local number
portability be maintained. 1Is that, as you understand
it, an industry issue or a GTE-specific issue?

A An industry issue.

] And the reguirement for 10-digit dialing
within and between al) old and new area codes if
overlay is implemented, that's consistent with GTE's
recommendation as well?

A Correct.

Q And your proposed regquirement for GTE to
Florida to analyze and report on the feasibility of a
revenues neutral rate center consolidation plan, is
this issue already under review, as you understand it,

at the Commission in wvorkshops?

A I'm not avare of that at this tire.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q Would you say that that's also an
industry-wide issue rather than a GTE-specific jssue?

A Many other parts of the country are looking
at this. Some have been implemented: some are going
through implementation.

g So would that be a yes?

A Yes.

Q And the fourth condition you have is
establishment of a workshop or other appropriate
process to consider number conservation mechanisma for
the Tampa LNP area. And, again, is this issue under
review already in the Commission's number portability
dockst to your knowledge?

A I'm not sure.

Q Would you say, though, that this is an
industry-wide issus as well? |

A Correct?

MS. CASWELL: That's all I've got.
CHAIRMAN JOHNBOM: Thank you. Mr. Beck?
MR. BECK: No questions.
COMMISBIONER JORNNBOM: Staff?
CROSS EXIAMINATION
BY NS. DROWN:
Q Ms. Paul, I'm sorry, I didn't understand

your answer to the earlier question about whe.her MCI

rLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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attended the industry meetings that were called by GTE
to dstermine a plan for 81131.

} 3 No, we 4id not attend.

Q You did not attend.

You say on Page 3 of your testimony at

Line 9 -- well, from Line 7 to 9, that you want to
assist the Commission in considering end user impacts,
and the impacts on emerging local competition, and to
wvhat extent, if any, of these negative impacts for an
overlay or for a geographic split can be mitigated; is

that correct?

Excuse me, what -- where are you on my
testimony?
Q I'm on Page )} of your testimony, Lines 7

through $ -- 7 through 10.

A Okay .

Q You're asking the Commission to consider
impacts on end users and emerging local competitors
and what can ba done to mitigate negative impacts.

A Uh~hun.

+] Then your testimony goes on in considerable
detail and considers the mitigating things that the
commission could do to lessen the negative impacts on
emerging local competition. But I don't see in your

testimony anywhere where you talk about any mitigating
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actions that the Commission can take to lessen any end
user impacts?

A Well, I think that goes into the very first
part of the answver to that question, where the split,
as opposed to the overlay, will mitigate some of
those. In the split fewer customers will be affected
by the 10-digit dialing. F.wer customers will have to
reprogras their security systems. Fewer customers
will be affected and have to change their advertising
or their business stationery, things of that type,.

Q And if the Commission decides to implement
an overlay, you have some mitigating factors for the
commission to consider for competitors for an overlay.
Do you have anything that you can think of that would
aid customers?

A No, I can't at this time.

Q You talk on Page 10 of your testimony about
interim pooling. Wwhat do you mean by an interim
pooling solution?

Ultimately, what we would like to see is
single number pooling where every single number could
be pooled to different carriers regardless of the
block the NXX is in. So one of the first steps to
that would be to use -- break that 10,000 number

blocks into thousand number blocks, and then work down

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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from there. Take those thousand number blocks, which
may be contaminated or have some assignment in thenm,
and then keep on going down farther and farther down
until we get down to single digit pooling.
Q And so interim pooling is sort of the steps
along the way?
; Correct.
Q Don't all of those steps require permanent
number portability before they can be implemented?
A Correct.
MS. BPROWM: No further questions. Thank
you.
CONMISSIONER JOHMSON: Commissioners?
COMMISSIONBR CLARK: I just have a guestiocn
on Page 10, Lines 5 and 6. You talk about a change in
rate areas as relatively simple task from a technical
standpoint, but it would necessarily cause impacts.
And then you have in parenthesis "revenue neutral on
end user call rating." What do you mean by that?
WITHNESS FAUL: Depending on how you
consolidate your rate centers, you may be changing the
poundaries. And right now wvhat is from one rate
center to another may be a toll, might be an ECS,
might be a local, but by changing those boundaries you

may take away some of your toll revenue and maka it
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local.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: You're saying if it is
done, it has to be revenue neutral.

WITNESS FAUL: That's what we should strive
for.

CEAIRMAN JOENSON: Any other questions? And
there were no exhibits.

Thank you, ma'am. You're excused.

(Witness Faul excused.)

CONMISSIONER JONMBON: ATLT?

MB. RULE: AT&T calls Mr. Bobby Smith.

BOBBY R. BMITH
was called as a witness on behalf of ATE&T
Communications of the Southern States, Inc. and,
having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMIMATION
BY MS. RULE:
Q Could you state your name and addrees for

| the record, please?
It's Bobby R. Smith.

Q And your address?

It's 1200 Peachtree Street, Atlanta,
Georgia.
Q How are you employed?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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I'm employed by AT4T as a manager in the Lav
and Government Affairs organization.

Q Did you prefile testimony in this case
consisting of nine pages of rebuttal?

A Nine pages of direct, yes.

Q I'm sorry. And do you have any changes or
corrections to make?

) Y No, I do not.

g And if I ask you the same questions as are
in your testimony, would your answers be the same?
) Y Yes, they would.
MS. RULB: 1I'd ask that Mr. Smith's preflled
testimony be inserted into the record as though read.

CEAIRMAN JOHENSON: It will be so inserted.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
BOBBY R. SMITH
ON BEHALF OF
AT&T COMMUNICATIONS OF THE SOUTHERN STATES, INC.

DOCKET NO.: 980048-TL

PLEASE STATE YOUR MANE, BUSINEBS ADDRESS AND TITLE.

My name is Bobby R. Smith. My buv.iness address is 1200
Peachtree Street N.E., Atlanta, Ceorgia 30309. 1 am
employed by ATE&T as a Manager in the Law & Government

Affairs Organization.

BRIKFLY OUTLINE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND BUBIMNESS
BEPERIENCE IN THRE TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY.

I received a Bachelor of Arts Degree in 1974, in
Sociology from Washington & Lee University in Lexington,
Virginia. I received a Master of Business Administration
Degree in Marketing/Finance in 1976 from Wake Forest

University in Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

My telecommunications career began in 1976 with Southern
Bell (now known as HerllSouth) i Charlotte, North
Carolina, in the Inventery and Cust Engineering group.
In 1979, 1 transferred to Southern Bell's Service Costs

organization in Atlanta, Geargia where 1 held
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responsibllity for developing cost studies for WATS, coin
telephone and data services, In 1981, 1 accepted a
position with AT&T's Marketing department in New York
where I held responsibility for the implementation of a
nev digital data service. In 1983, 1 returned to Atlanta
with AT&T's Governmont Atfairs organization and have held
various positions dealing with carrier local access,
service pricing, legislative and regulatory policy and

other regulatory issues.

WHAT IS THEE PURPOSBE OF YOUR TESTINONY IM THIB CABE?

The purpose of my testimony is to provide information to
the Florlda Public Service Commission (*Commission"™)
regarding the most appropriate method of relief for the
813 Numbering Planning Area {"NPA"). AT&LT believes that
any NPA rellef (i.e. Area Code P’lan relief) must be
planned and impplemented in a competitively neutral manner
so that no particular service provider {s unduly favored
or adversely affected. This is extremely important in
order to ensure that competition develops for local
telecommunication services. Fven though - all relief
plans result ln some measure of customer inconvenience,
AT&T believes that the impact of area code relief on
customers can and should be kept to a minimum while

promoting the development of local competition for the
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long term benefit of Florida consumerse. AT&T believes
that a geographic split best accomplishes these goals in
the 813 NPA. If the Commission adopts an overlay,
howevar, it should implement the requirements described

below to minimize customer impact while promoting

competition.

WEY I8 TEERE AN INCREASING NEED TJOR AREA CODE RELIEF?

The increased demand for telephone numbers due to
subscriber growth, second lines, fax machines, cellular
phones, pagers, etc., is accelerating the depletion of
numbers avallable for assignment within a NPA., As more
and more humbers are assigned within existing central
office codes, new NXXs are assigned and used.
Evantually, the NPA nears exhaust, that is, the near-term
demand for NXXs and telephone numbers exceeds the
avallable quantity of unassigned NXXs and telephone

numbers.

In addition, competition in the local exchange is further
increasing the demand on numbering resources. New
competing local service providers Jill need NXXe to
provide telephone numbers for their customers. NPA

relief has developed into a major issue nationally.

334
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WHAT ARE THE AVAILABLE METHODS FOR RELIEF OF AN ARER CODE

LXEAUST?

There are two methods:

» a geographic split or

» an all services overlay.

WHAT ARE THE ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF A GEOGRAPHIC

aPLIT?

The advantages are:

1. The gsographic split is the most familiar and least
confusing to customers. Each geographic area
retains a unique area code.

2. There are no dialing changes within the home NPA.
Customers can continue to dial seven digits within
their home area code and 10 digits for toll]l free
local calls cutside their home area code.

3. It does not discriminate agajinst new entrant local
service providers. Both the incumbent LEC and new
entrants will have NXXs in the existing area code
and the new area code. All service providers, in
terms of number assignments, are placed on equal

footing in each area code.
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The new area code will be populated from the
outset, and therefore is less likely to be seen by

customers as undesirable.

The disadvantages are:

1.

Existing customers who are in the geographic area
no longer served by the existing area code (i.e.
813) experience a one-time inconvenience.
Businesses must change stationery and advertising
and update customer lists. Customer premises
equipment, including FPBXs, payphones, alarm
monitoring systems, speed dialing and fax machines,
must be reprogrammed.

It may be difficult to determine the split
boundaries for the old and new area code since
there may not be any "obvicus" boundaries.
Additionally, the geographic area served by each
NPA after the split will be smaller. Such
shrinkage increases with future geographic splits,
increasing customer confusicn and inconvenience.
Unless cellular numbers are grandfathered, cellular
and wireless customers must haive their phones
reprogrammed, causing inconvenience to the

customers and great expense to the companies.
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ARE THR ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF AN ALL

SERVICE OVERLAY?

The advantages are:

1.

There are no number changes required for existing
telephone numbers.

Future area code relief can be accomplished
through additional overlays since subscribers will
have become familiar with chis method.

There is no further geographic division of the

Tampa area.

The disadvantages are:

New entrant local service providers who do not
already have NXXs in the 811 area code will be
assigned NXXs in the new, underpopulated area
code, while the majority of subscribers, customers
of the incumbent LEC, retain numbers in the
existing, familiar area code. Customers of the
incumbent LEC will still be able to obtain new
numbers from the existing NPA; while customers of
new entrants may not. For example, if a customer
selects a new competitive [LKEC, who does not have
any 813-NXXs, as its local service provider, the
competing LEC would only be able toc assign numbers
from the new area code for additional numbers.

Consequently, new entrants may be competitively

f
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disadvantaged because customers typically perceive
the new area code as less desirable than the old
code.

Two or more area codes may be required within the
same household or business resulting in customer
confusion and inconvenience,

There is a loss of geographic identity with two or
more area codes covering tt: same geographic area.
This creates the potential for confusion by
talecommunication end users, both within the
ovaerlay area and for end users in cther area codes
unfamiliar with the overlay making calls to the
overlay area.

Customers will have to dial more digits, even for
local calls with the same area code since 10 digit
dialing is mandated by the FCC for all calls, even
local calls with the same NPA-NXX (i.e. local
calls in the Tampa will require 10 digits).
Customer premises equipment, including PBXs and
alarm monitering systems that have not been
programmed for 10 digit dialing will require

reprogramming.

WHAT I8 ATAT'S RECONMENDATION FOR B13 AREA CODE RELIEF?

AT&T supports the geographical split as the first

choice for area code relief for the 813 area code.

Both geographic splits and all service overlays,

?
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however, have advantages and disadvantages as ! have
previously mentioned. From a technical standpoint,
AT&T can and will support either one that the
Commission may order. The determining factor should be
what the Commission, after hearing the parties’
positions and using a public interest standard, deems
is in the besat interest of the people living and

working in the 81) area code.

ARF TNERE ANY REQUIREMENTS THE COMMISSION BHOULD
INPLEMENT IF 1T DECIDES THAT A GEOGRAFPHIC SBPLIT IS8 IN
THRE DEST INTEREST FOR TEE 6813 AREAR CODE?

Yes., If the Florida Commission were to order a
geographic aplit relief option rather than an overlay,
the Commisaion should also order the grandfathering of
wireless and cellular subscribers' phone numbers.
Unlike wireline customers, wireless customers must have
their phones reprogrammed when their area codes change.
Reprogramming analog wireless phones is a complex task
that customers cannot do themselves; they must instead
take the phone to a wireless carrier to be
reprogrammed. This is an unnecessary burden on the
wirslass customer and can be a huge and expensive
undertaking for a wireless carrier with a large number

of effected customers.
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WHAT REQUIREMENTS SHOULD THE COMMISSION INPLENENT TO
FROMOTE LOCAL COMPETITION IF AN ALL SERVICES OVERLAY 18
ADOPTRD?

In order to offmset the competitive advantage enjoyed by

the incumbent LEC if an all services overlay lis

selected for the area code relief, the following items
must be implemented:

1. All remaining NXXs in the old area code must be
equitably allocated tc all competing carriers,
sxcluding the incumbent LEC.

2. Mandatory 10 digit dialing must be required for
all local calls.

3. The overlay must be applied to all
telecommunications carriers.

4. Permanent number portability must be up and

operating in the Bl) area code.

WHAT NPA RELIEF PLAN SHOULD THE FLORIDA COMMISBIONM
ADOPT IN THIS DOCKET?

AT&T believes that the Commission should adopt a
geographic split in the 813 NPA. If the Commission
adopts an overlay, however, it should implement the
requirements described above tu minimize customer

impact while promoting competition.

DORS THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yesn, it does.
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A Yes, I did.

Q AT&T was invited to that industry meeting at
which the overlay was chosen, was it not?

A I don't know really. 1 can't say for sure
that we were invited. There appears to be some
confusion. But I did hear Mr. -- I'm sorry, how do
you pronounce his name -- Gancarz, said that we were
invited, but I've not been able to determine whether
or not we were.

Certainly as a policy issue that -- it is
our position to attend those types of meetings and
participate in those types of meetings.

Q Would your counsel object to having GTE
submit a list of invitees to that meeting?

MS. RULE: I belileve it's already in the

record.
MS. CASWEBLL: ©Oh, is it?
MS. RULE: Yes.
MS8. CASBWEBLL: ©Okay. No need for that then.
Q (By Ms. Caswell) Do you know if ATET

Wireless attended that meeting?

A I believe I saw a list that their name was

on that list as an attendee.

Q Are you awars that ATLT Wireless voted in

favor of the overlay?

r7TORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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 } I don't know whether they voted in favor for
it or not. Again, there was earlier testimony that
said that the decision was unanimous, but I really
don't know. 1 cannot answer that question.

Q ¥Would there be any change in your position
today if AT&T -- if you find out that -- found out
that AT&T Wireless had voted in favor 2f the overlay?

A No, there would not be any change. Again,
the organization that I represent is AT&T
communications. And, again, AT4T Wireless is a
separate subsidiary, so I do not represent that

organization and our policy would not change.

Q Okay. As I read your testimony, you bal feve
that the overlay is anticompetitive because if a
customer selected a CLEC who does not have any 813
KXXs that CLEC would only be able to only assign

numbers from the new area code. Is that a fair

understanding?

A That's correct.

Q And doesn't AT4T already have 813 NXXs?

Yes, wa do have sonme codes.

Q And can AT&T ask for even more 813 area code
numbars?

Certainly. If there are more code numbers

available, we can ask for codes. But if we're running

. W0RIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMM1ISSION
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into a situation where the codes are going to be in
sxhaust, then there might not be any more codes
available when we ask for codes. And, certainly, we
would not bs on an equal basis with the incumbent
carrier, who has codes already available in the
existing and more eastablished NPA. If there are more
codes available we could ask for ceodes.

Q Do you know how many phone numbers available
in the 813 area code you how have for assignment?

A Do I xnow how many phone numbers?

o In tha B13 area code?

A No, I do not.

Q Would you accept, subject to check, that
it's 50,0007

A Yes, subject to check, I would accept that.

Q How many local customers does AT&T have in
the Tampa Bay area?

A I don't know the amount of customers that we
have in Tampa. I'm not involved in the local
marketing. I'm involved in the policy part of the
company, so0 I really wouldn't know how many customers
that we have. But, certainly, one of -- my job is to
make sure that the proper policy will be implemented
that will create an environment where competition will

flourish. But to answer your question, no, I do rot.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q From your testimony I gather that you
believe that GTE won't assign any remaining 813 NXXs
to CLECs in the event an overlay. Am I correct in
that understanding?

) Y No, that is not my testimony.

Q Okay. So you do understand that GTE will
continue to assign those 813 NXXs to CLECs, correct?

A Yes, I assume that you would. Again, if
there ars codss available, that those codes could be
assigned to new entrants. But if you're running into
an exhaust situation and those codes may not be
available, and, again, the incumbent carrier will have
codes already in the more established area code, and
then the new entrants would have to get codes in the
less establ ished area code, which to some customers
those numbsrs might be undesirable and they might not
choose to take the new entrant's service because of
that reason. But I have no reason to believe that If
those numbers are available that GTF would not
allocate those numbers to new entrants.

Q But in a number exhaust gituation, wouldn't
GTE itself have to assign the new area code to new
customers just like the CLEC would?

Well, I guess it's yes and no. You're

talking about -- talking about codes. You could have

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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substantially all of the codes in the old egtabl ished
NPA assigned to your switches, and you might have
numbers that are available that have not been
utilized, the actual telephone numbers themselves.
Q And ATET also has 81) numbers that have not
been utilized; is that correct?
A That is correct.
MS. CASWELL: That's all 1 have. Thank you
Mr. Smith.
COMMISSIOMNER CLARK: Mr. Smith, I just want
to follow up on one guestion. You're saying AT&T
Wireless is a subsidiary of your company, or not?

TEE WITHRES:

WITHNESS BMITH: ATLT Wireless -- and I don't
know how the organiration is put tcgether -- but ATE&T
Wireless is a separate subsidiary and it's separate
from the corpany that 1'm a part of.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Okay. Well, 1if they
have no problem with the change, why do you have a
problem with it? I mean -- I guess what it really --
what I'm really asking is you take the position if you
do an overlay that you should grandfather in the cell

phones?

WITNESS SMITH: No, that if you do a split

you nsed -- you should grandfather the cellular

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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pheones.

COMMISSIONER CLARK: Okay. All right. Now
I understand it.

COMMISSIONER JOEMBOM: Mr. Beck?

MR. BBCE: Ko questions.

CEAIRMAN JONMBOM: Staff?

CROSS EXAMIMATION

BY NS. BROWN:

Q Mr. Smith, do you know whether AT&T
participated in the industry meetings that preceded
the proposal by BellSouth to implement an area code
relief for the 305 area code?

A I don't know exactly, but I would assume
that we did participate in that meeting. 1[I was not
assigned to this iesue at that time, s0 I was not
tracking what was going on at that particular time
with this issue. But I assume that we did attend.

g Would you accept, subject to check, that you
did not?

A I will accept that, subject to cneck, Yyes.

Q All right. Ccommiesioner Clark just asked
you about grandfathering cellular phones in. How
would that work? How would you go about
grandfathering cellular phones?

A All I'm saying is that if you're doing a

FrORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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split, and some of the customers are going to have to
change their area code, that you probably would want
to grandfather the area code for the existing cellular
customers. Because if you don’'t do that, then the
analog customsrs wil! have to take their phone to
their service provider to be reprogrammed, and that
will be a substantial inconvenience for cellular
customers. So that's one way that you could help
mitigate the impact on those types of customers.

] And you don't think grandfathering cellular
phones would violate the assignment guidelines?

A No, do I not. And I -- let me try to make
myself clear. I'm not saying that -- I'm saying only
the existing numbers will be grandfathered. If you
got a cellular phone after the split was implemented,
then certainly you could be assigned the new area code
under that scenario. But the grandfathering, at least
my understanding, that it would not viclate those
guidelines.

Q How much dces it cost to reprogram a
cellular phon: for a new area code?

A I don't know.

Q How much time does it take to reprogram a

cellular phone?

A I don’t know. The exact time, but, again,

PTORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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it's not something that the customer could do, that
the customer would have to take that phone to their
service provider and have that done. How much time it
would take, I don't really know.

COMMIBSSIONER GARCIA: Ms. Brown, you're
running out of time.

MS. BROWNM: I know. I've no further

questions.

NS. RULE: At the risk of drawing this out,
I have quick redirect.
REDIRECT EXIANIMATION

BY MS. RULB:

Q Mr. Smith, you heard Ms. Caswell ask you
some guestions about NXXs held by AT&T?

A Yes, I did.

Q And you agreed, subject toc check, that there
are 50,000 phone numbers or 5 NXXs that AT&T has
assigned to it?

A Yes, I d4id.

Q Did you also hear testimony earlie: today
that there are mecre than five rate centers in the
Tampa area?

A I bealieve I dia.

Q S50 you could not replicate, then, the

servics offered by GTE with the numbers currently held
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by AT&T, could you?
A No, we could not.

MS. RULE: No further guestions.

CEAIRMAN JONMBOM: Thank you, sir. You're
excused.

(Witness Smith excused.)

COMMISSIONER JOENSOMN: And Latvala's
testimony has already been inserted into the record as
though read. We have two late-filed exhibite.

MS. BROWN: We don't have a date for those.

CEAIRMAN JONNSON: Okay. Is two weeks
sufficient time?

MS. CASWELL: Yes.

MS. BROWN: We have one other post matter to
digscuss, whether the parties want to waive submission
of briefs in order to speed up the process.

MS. CASWELL: Can 1 speak on that quickly?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Sure.

MS. CASWELL: Since the matter is already
set for decision on April 21st, I think we can
accommodate briefing within that schedule. 1I'd be
willing to do it on an expedited basis, but I'm not

inclined to give up my briefing rights.

MS. DROWM: The idea was that we would move
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up the recommendation.
COMMISSIONER JOMNSBON: Why don't we try to
work that ocut. To the extent that it can't be worked

out, we will bring it to the attention of the

prehearing officer. Okay.

Sesing no further business, this hearing is

adjourned. Thank You very much.

(Thereupon, the hearing concluded at

5:25 p-m.)
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